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Vision

ng

Ir CHAN Sau Kit, Allan (Chairman)
FRISZN TR2EM (£F)

To be an excellent organization in offering a wide range
of compensations to patients with pneumoconiosis
and/or mesothelioma, providing quality rehabilitation
care to the patients for enhancing their physical
condition, and, developing and implementing
preventive measures for striving to minimize the
occurrence of these diseases among the workforce in
the construction and quarry industries.

BOMREBEOEE  RBEMERNER N RERB
MATRE-FINHEE - BEHERIRSG AR IR
T REMEEE - ANBIRTMHETTIRDI 1836 - DR E AN
AEXONEXB B LHERRRIEE




MISSION
{& on

To provide a platform for the compensation, rehabilitation HMEXRERNKRBEEE - REREMERTER
and prevention of pneumoconiosis and mesothelioma for the KEKBH#HE EEREHREFE <&
betterment of the patients, the workforce in the industries as % - BRATHRUEERBEHEZE -

well as the society as a whole, we endeavor to fulfill the statutory

functions in a professional and caring manner through:

e utilizing effectively the resources collected from the ©  HHRERCIPEESRIE RS & M5 & (i 1E) 561D
construction and quarry industries in accordance with FREERMAREBURASNER - BRUE
the Pneumoconiosis and Mesothelioma (Compensation) BRARNEITERATEAREE
Ordinance to fulfill our statutory functions;

e launching rehabilitation programmes to enhance the physical —®  H#fTERRT - LA 2EMN S EHKEE -
condition of the patients;

e implementing educational and publicity programmes to *  #ERHARSEFE UEEXAEE - B

raise the awareness of employers, workers, professionals and B EXATMEE  UEMRARE it
trainees in the industries as well as the public at large on RRETERT B Wi Bh b I hnag TRy T
the prevention of the above diseases, and facilitate them in (=

strengthening prevention works;

e building an occupational health culture among practitioners ®  REFEVBERERENE
in the industries;

e  providing medical examination programme for construction ®  AEERTRIEHIIIMRE R :
workers;

e  supporting researches relating to the prevention, treatment ¢ SR8 BAUKERIED - JaE REFERA
and rehabilitation of the above diseases; and HEIE: &

e  maintaining a team of quality, efficient and people-oriented ® ¥ —XAERRBERWHOMBEL - FEH A

staff. ABREIRT °

CODE OF ETHICS BHEFR

e practising the principles of honesty, integrity, objectivity, ¢  EfTHEAS%E  FETE - TEEH - TR
impartiality, accountability, dedication, professionalism and ™M AEEE  BEBTREEHENR

diligence. Al o
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COMMITTEE ON FINANCE & ADMINISTRATION

HHERITHESSE

The Committee on Finance and Administration is responsible for
monitoring the finance, administration and investment affairs of
the Board. In 2020, the global and local economies were hard-
hit by the COVID-19 pandemic. Even so, the Board exercised extra
monitoring and control on the financial position of the Board to
ensure it remained stable and healthy.

In the first half of the year, levy income was lower than expected.
But it was recouped in the second half of the year. As a whole,
total levy income in 2020 increased by 6.58% to $358.40 million
when compared with the value of $336.28 million in last year.
The levies from the public sector increased by 7.20% to $174.06
million, and that from the private sector increased by 5.97%
to $184.12 million. On the other hand, levies from the quarry
industry increased from $0.17 million to $0.23 million.

Due to the epidemic, interest rates and dividend payout dropped
drastically. Excluding fair value gain on financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss (Tracker Fund), total investment
income was $62.22 million, which showed a decrease of $10.73
million or 14.71% compared with $72.95 million of last year. The
interest income of certificate of deposits, bonds and fixed deposits
decreased by 15.38% or $8.61 million to $47.36 million. The
dividend income decreased from $16.98 million to $14.86
million. In June 2020, in view of the market value of quoted
investment, the Board purchased 3 505 00O units of the Tracker
Fund with the total consideration as $86.30 million to bring the
market value of quoted investment up to the level of 15% of the
accumulated fund. In December 2020, the Board sold out all the
174 500 shares of Swire Pacific Ltd. ‘A’ Shares for $7.77 million
since the stock was removed from the Hang Seng Index constituent
list.

On the total expenditure, it decreased by 4.31% to $278.24
million. Total compensation of $209.10 million showed a decrease
of $3.90 million or 1.83% from 2019.

Moreover, a total of $39.67 million was spent for prevention,
research and rehabilitation, which was $9 million or 18.49%
less than 2019. The decrease was partly due to the smaller
number of rehabilitation exercises taken by patients in community
rehabilitation centres and the drop in number of workers being
examined by the Medical Surveillance Programme arising from
social distancing measures under the epidemic.

MBERTREESREEEESZ RN -
THRKRERE - 7£20204F - 2HRFMLBER
AHERSRENEETE - A E2ZEE
REUT BN EE SR AT I I - REM BN
RFFISTE S (R »

2020 F ¥ F > HMARALTFEHAK 2
ETEFEEOEE - BEMs - EFEHXK
H=FRFTN NEBO+EIT 2R HELEF
SEETFAREZTNAELIEINT 6.58% © A%
ITRBERIBRE—BETHEZRNETL
EFEEINT 7.20% + F A LIRIEE ABRBEGR
EINT5.97% HWH—EBNANTFTHE—+Z=8
Lo B—AHE #ABREWIOEFRABLFE
ZttEnEmnE—+=81-

HREBHEGR RTAEERBREERBEZT
o MBIEARBEFABEZEHEEY
2hBERZ(BEEES) BERKEKAR
e HRIAF-_B-_+-87x HLELEF
tFZEALTREL B —FEE+=E
% 14.71% ° (EFHFE - EFRRITTEHFRA
BHAERAXNTFEtE=Z+AET BLF
EWRARPDNBNT—8T515.38% © Mk
BEWABEFEZ-—FTRAEATNABLRLZE
—FHEBNTET f£2020F6 7 © &£7FH
IR ERENMISERE  E¢EZESER
NFARE=TETHEA3 505 000fAREESE
i R ETRENTSEEERBEESAR
1915% ° fFERF 12 A - BAH KOG HIEESS
HROR  ReZEgMEMAaAEROERA
Al'AREEE 174 50008 - WEIEEE+HETT -

SHAHE RFELARSIL EFRD431%  H
“REEFNAETEET  IAMERTERKR
MEBRAZSBRERYE-_BTALE—TE
TT 0 Hh2019FH A 1.83% s =ANTET °

BHERX) E2ZE8@TERT=TNAE
NTEBTETEIEER HARRERTE
LFERINBET  FIER18.49% @ HA PR
PR B RERREEERHERRSHD
BEMEENT ERER SR AELREE
B OETERESHRERD - M2 EFHER
MER/ERBESRERE M ABIIARERD -




COMMITTEE ON FINANCE & ADMINISTRATION

To sum up, $255.76 million or 91.92% of the total expenditure
of the Board were paid as compensation, medical examination,
research, prevention and rehabilitation for the benefit of patients
and workers.

Besides, a total of $0.69 million was spent for information
technology fulfilling the maintenance and recurrent needs of the
Board. Another sum of $0.25 million was spent for hardware and
systems software which were capitalised respectively as fixed
assets and intangible assets of the Board.

The surplus of income over expenditure for the year was $144.15
million, which was $9.71 million or 7.22% more than the previous
year. The balance of accumulated fund as at end of the year was
$2,882.50 million.

Regarding the investment of reserves, about 85% of the surplus
funds would be placed on certificate of deposits, bonds and
fixed deposit at short to long-term fixed rates in order to ensure
a relatively stable interest income. The certificate of deposits
and bonds will be held to maturity, while the remaining 15% of
the surplus funds were invested in listed shares and the Tracker
Fund for dividend income and long-term investment purposes. In
2020, in view of the epidemic, the global financial market was
very volatile, and thereby increasing the risk of investment. The
Committee continued to closely monitor the investment portfolios.

In June 2020, the Board submitted its annual report in 2019 for
tabling in the Legislative Council. The Estimates of Income and
Expenditure together with the Yearly Programme for 2021 were
also submitted in December 2020 for approval by the Government
in accordance with the provision of the Pneumoconiosis and
Mesothelioma (Compensation) Ordinance (PMCO).

As the authorised paying agent of the Pneumoconiosis Ex Gratia
Fund (“the Fund”), the Board presented the Fund’s interim and
final reports together with the financial statements for the year
ended 31 March 2020 which were audited by the Director of Audit
and approved by the Government.

Throughout the year, the Board faced a lot of challenges arising
from the epidemic. The Committee would like to thank Members
who had given extra efforts and contributions in overcoming these
hurdles and continued to oversee the finance, administration and
investment affairs of the Board.
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COMMITTEE ON LEVY & COMPENSATION

HRRHESES

Levy

The overall levy income in 2020 was increased by 6.58% to
$358.40 million. The private sector had an increase of 5.97% to
$184.12 million (2019: $173.74 million). The public sector had
an increase of 7.20% to $174.06 million versus $162.37 million
in the previous year.

The Board recorded $13.09 million of levy income from MTR
projects, indicated a 10.03% drop from the previous year of $14.55
million. With only one quarry site operating in Hong Kong, the levy
income from quarry industry increased from $0.17 million to $0.23
million.

The construction projects at Kai Tak Development and the Airport
Development scheme contributed levy income of $33.33 million,
an increase of $9.75 million from $23.58 million in 2019,
representing a rise of 41.35%. Levy income from projects in the
West Kowloon Cultural District was increased from $1.75 million
to $3.24 million, representing an increase of 85.14%.

Compensation

The number of new cases recorded in 2020 was 112, including 88
Silicosis, 12 Asbestosis and 12 Mesothelioma cases. The number
of patients receiving monthly compensation at year end slightly
increased from 1 432 in 2019 to 1 433 in 2020.

The total expenditure of compensation was $209.10 million,
representing a drop of 1.83% as compared with $213 million in
2019.
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COMMITTEE ON LEVY & COMPENSATION

In 2020, five compensation items were paid at revised levels
following the resolution passed at the Legislative Council on 3
April 2019. They included the amount of Monthly Compensation
for Pain, Suffering and Loss of Amenities at $5,330, the amount
of Compensation for Bereavement and the minimum compensation
for death at $220,000, the maximum amount of Funeral Expenses
at $87,330 and the amount of Monthly Compensation for Care and
Attention at $5,600. Eligible pneumoconiosis or mesothelioma
patients were also entitled to the reasonable expenses of the
use or supply of two new medical appliances, which included (i)
non-invasive positive pressure ventilation device (and humidifier
when used with the device) and their accessories; and (ii) sputum
suction device and its accessories.

Affected by the epidemic, the survey on patients’ level of
satisfaction on the Compensation Services was conducted by post
instead of the usual face-to-face interviews. The average score
with “satisfied” or “very satisfied” given by patients was 95.8 out
of the total score of 100.

Lastly, sincere thanks were given to all the Committee members for
their contributions in the areas of Levy and Compensation.

HRRRBIEES
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COMMITTEE ON RESEARCH

HREEaE2

The Committee on Research is committed to financing and
working closely with academics and industries’ stakeholders for
conducting promising and practical projects. Working towards its
target, the Committee had another fruitful year in 2020, and the
following table summarises our work. The total expenditure spent
on Research in 2020 was $2.62 million, showing a slight increase
of about $106,000 as compared with 2019.

MEZEG —EBNBEBRAREBEMERSS
NEETAE  ETTSBAEBENREREED
BER -WAEHTA#EE ZEEN2020FF %
S EEENFE  ATERESFZEGEET
e RFERARARENAIK-_AR+=8x "
L 2019 FEMIR A +EZTART T

Types of project Number HEER A
New projects approved 5 TR BRI R 5
New projects declined 8 SR ERERE 8
Projects completed 2 SERKIEE 2
Projects in progress 2 HEITPIEE 2

In order to fund topmost projects so as to bring the highest values
to our patients and the stakeholders, the Committee adopts
a rigorous and meticulous approach in vetting proposals. The
Committee approved a variety of five projects with different focuses
in this year. Among these projects, two targeted for development
of new treatment methods in mesothelioma, one focused on using
a modified Chinese medicine formula for improving the anti-
inflammatory and anti-fibrotic effects in clinical applications for
the treatment of pneumoconiosis, and the other two aimed at
further improving the care of our patients.

Dr S K Lam and the team led by Dr James Ho of The University
of Hong Kong (HKU) have been devoting much effort in exploring
therapeutic advancement to mesothelioma. In an earlier project
also funded by the Board, the team has successfully disclosed the
anticancer effect of arsenic trioxide (ATO) in malignant pleural
mesothelioma (MPM), and proposed that ATO may potentially
serve as a salvage treatment when standard chemotherapy
fails. However, the next challenge comes as the subsequent
development of acquired ATO-resistance may happen, thus
eliminating the ATO treatment effect in mesothelioma patients.
To overcome this problem, the Committee approved a new project
entitled “ldentification of arsenic trioxide-resistant genes in
cisplatin-resistant mesothelioma cells using CRISPR screening”.
In this project, a novel technique, CRISPR, would be used to
identify resistant genes in different therapies and to explore novel
combinations. As such, the study would shed light on the new
combination for salvage treatment of MPM patients.
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COMMITTEE ON RESEARCH

In addition to conventional treatments, immunotherapy offers
another hope to mesothelioma patients. A study entitled “Gamma-
delta T cells as immunotherapy against mesothelioma” conducted
by Dr Allen Cheung of the Hong Kong Baptist University was
approved in this year. As it had been proved in earlier studies that
one type of immune cell, gamma-delta T cells, was effective in the
treatment of a wide range of cancers including kidney and liver, Dr
Cheung proposed to investigate if gamma-delta T cells would be
promising in mesothelioma immunotherapy. With the encouraging
preliminary data, it is hoped that the data generated from this
project could substantiate the potential of gamma-delta T cells as
a new type of anti-mesothelioma immunotherapy.

More than 98% of our patients are pneumoconiosis patients
and lung fibrosis reduces their quality of life. Unfortunately,
lung fibrosis is incurable and irreversible. In recent years, more
patients took Chinese medicine and researches conducted by
the Chinese Medicine professional also brought advancement
in the treatment of pneumoconiosis. At present, Qing-Zao-Jiu-
Fei Decoction (QZJFD), a well-known Chinese herbal formula, is
commonly prescribed to treat various lung-related diseases, such
as cough and tuberculosis. Pilot studies conducted by Dr Xian Yan
Fang and her team in the Chinese University of Hong Kong (CUHK)
have successfully demonstrated that a modified QZJFD composed
of 11 herbs has more potent anti-inflammatory and anti-fibrotic
effects than the original QZJFD applied in animal models. In view
of this, the Committee approved the project entitled “Development
of Modified Qing-Zao-Jiu-Fei Decoction as a Novel Agent for
Pneumoconiosis: Preclinical Evaluation on Its Efficacy, Safety and
Molecular Mechanisms” conducted by Dr Xian, hoping that the new
herb combination could help slow down the fibrotic progression,
control the disease and hence bring a better quality of life to our
patients in the future.

In addition to the treatment of the diseases, the Committee is also
eager to fund researches targeted for enhancement of the care
of our patients. Two projects in this area were approved this year,
one entitled “Influence of cognitive function and skeletal muscle
mass and strength on disability among people with silicosis”
conducted by Dr Cheng Ho Yu of the CUHK, and the other entitled
“Lung function and progression of chest radiographic profusion
among pneumoconiosis patients with different statuses of cigarette
smoking in Hong Kong during 1981-2019” conducted by Dr Shelly
Tse also from the same university. In general, the two projects
would let the Committee have a clearer understanding on our
patients’ need so that the Board would be able to enhance the
current services or design new ones so as to bring even better care
to our patients.
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Besides the newly approved projects, two other projects approved
earlier had been completed and the researchers submitted the final
reports to the Committee. Not only have the encouraging findings
from these studies convinced the Committee that the funding
provided was valuable, the practical values of these projects
benefitting our patients and carers also reassured the Committee
that the work done in previous years did bring meaningful results.

For the project conducted by Dr Polly Li from the CUHK entitled
“The experience of patients and family caregivers in managing
pneumoconiosis in the family context: An exploratory qualitative
study”, Dr Li has given the Committee a clearer understanding
on the difficulties faced by the patients, in particular the more
severe group, and the burden borne by their carers. The findings
obtained in the study are not only useful to the Board, but also
to our other rehabilitation service providers for enhancement of
existing services and design of new services for our patients and
their carers. After completing the project, Dr Li has helped the
Pneumoconiosis Mutual Aid Association in running a series of carer
workshops under the “Social Support Service” funded by the Board
after tendering, and the findings obtained in her earlier research
study have provided strong theoretical support in designing the
content of the workshops. The results of the workshops conducted
in 2020 were satisfactory.

In another completed project entitled “Enhancing immunotherapeutic
efficacy of mesothelioma by overcoming MDSC-mediated
immunosuppression” conducted by Prof Chen Zhi Wei of the HKU,
the findings also unfolded more unknown areas and bring insight
to researchers for further studies on immunotherapy treatment on
MPM.

For all the advancement brought by our research works, the
Committee on Research would like to thank members for their
professional advice given in these years. The Committee will
continue the hard work on researches aiming to bring practical
and significant benefits to our patients as well as the other
stakeholders.
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COMMITTEE ON REHABILITATION

2020 was a challenging and unprecedented year for Hong Kong.
Due to the outbreak of COVID-19 and for the protection of the
patients as well as the introduction of various infection control
measures, the rehabilitation services of the Board have been
substantially affected. However, the commitment of the Committee
remains unwavering. Through the dedication of the Committee
in the year, the Board was able to maintain a well-structured
framework for providing diversified while tailor-made services to
the cohort of 1 462 patients.

Total expenditure spent in Rehabilitation was $16.13 million
in 2020, representing a decrease of $5.04 million compared
with 2019, and this was mainly due to the suspension of some
rehabilitation services that the Board was compelled to take the
measure given the volatile epidemic situation. In spite of this, the
Committee has been working hard to uphold the commitment and
devotion to providing high quality rehabilitation programmes to our
patients and caregivers. We are glad to share in this report these
programmes and their results during the year.

Cooperation between the Board and Hospital Authority (HA)
for delivery of a pulmonary rehabilitation programme (HA
programme) specifically for the patients with pneumoconiosis and
mesothelioma in designated hospitals is one of the highlights.
Following the commencement of service of Ruttonjee Hospital and
Haven of Hope Hospital in 2019, North District Hospital joined
the programme and started providing the services in December
2020. In this regard, the HA programme has been able to cover
all pneumoconiosis and mesothelioma patients in the whole
territory. During the year, 173 patients were referred to the HA
programme, even though the programme has been suspended for
almost half a year due to the concern of patients’ health risk under
the epidemic. Nevertheless, the hospitals have tried their best to
provide quality services, and a total of 782 service sessions had
been provided to patients by the professional teams composed
of specialist respiratory physicians, nurses, physiotherapists and
occupational therapists. We are happy to learn that the responses
of patients having received the services were mostly positive.
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Another group of patients with better physical conditions continued
to receive support and care through our Comprehensive Community
Rehabilitation (CCR) Programme. Same as the HA programme,
the CCR programme has been suspended for more than half a year
because of the infection control and social distancing measures
that the community exercise centres were required to follow under
the epidemic. During the year, 31 patients (2019: 123) completed
the preliminary assessment in Adventist Hospital — Tsuen Wan,
and the accumulated numbers of patients having completed
Phase 2 and Phase 3 increased to 519 and 231 (2019: 458 and
120) respectively. In 2020, 249 patients (2019: 318) joined the
exercise sessions for at least one time, and a total of 4 850 (2019:
14 985) exercise sessions have been arranged for patients. The
average number of sessions that a patient attended per month
decreased from 5.2 sessions in 2019 to 4.09 sessions in 2020,
mainly because some patients hesitated to go out for exercise
owing to the epidemic even after all community centres reopened
in the end of September. However, with the encouragement of the
Board’s Case Managers and the centres’ staff, together with the
strict precautionary measures adopted by the exercise centres, we
noted an overall rising trend in these figures during the last quarter
of 2020. For example, the average patients’ attendance jumped
back to 5.69 in October and 6.03 in November.

Accessibility of exercise centres is one of the key motivating
factors for patients to join the exercise sessions. The Committee
has looked for every opportunity in sourcing more well-equipped
centres to cater for patients living in different districts. A new
tender exercise was launched in 2020 to select suitable and
convenient exercise centres and we successfully sourced an
increased number of centres to participate in the programme. In
2021, the number of centres would be increased from 11 to 13.
The Committee hoped that the introduction of these new centres
could attract more patients to enroll in the programme.
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COMMITTEE ON REHABILITATION

Before the full operation of the HA programme, the Board engaged
the service of outsourced physiotherapists to provide Home
Physiotherapy Services to frail or homebound patients who were
not able to join exercises in community rehabilitation centres.
During the year, 61 patients (2019: 81) received the services and
a total of 554 (2019: 1 602) training sessions were carried out in
patients’ homes. In 2020, more patients were transferred to the
HA programme and it is expected that all suitable patients would
be eventually transferred to the hospitals under the HA programme
when it comes into full scale operation in early 2021. The
Committee would like to express our gratitude and appreciation
to the devoted physiotherapists of the service providers for
providing the best care to our patients during the past years. Most
patients who received the services were able to maintain their
health condition by following closely the instructions given by the
physiotherapists.

Physical health is certainly important to our patients but
maintaining psychological and social health in the rehabilitation
process are equally crucial to them, and perhaps this was even
more important when patients and caregivers had undergone
extra pressure brought by the epidemic. Through a tendering
process, the Board commissioned the Pneumoconiosis Mutual Aid
Association (PMAA) to provide social and psychological support
services to patients with psychological and social problems. During
the year, 200 cases had received a total of 1 321 home visits
attended by professional social workers aiming to solve or ease the
social and psychological problems faced by patients and/or their
carers.
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As pneumoconiosis is a chronic disease, carers play an important
role in enhancing both the physical and psychological health of
patients in the rehabilitation process. It is agreed that the care
and support given by carers would contribute much to improving
patients’ conditions. In 2020, the Committee combined the
“Carers’ Support Programme”, which was a stand-alone programme
in the previous years, into the “Social Support Programme” so that
a more integrated and comprehensive service could be provided to
patients and carers as a whole. During the year, 90 carers received
the home visits and completed the assessments. In addition, a
research project funded by the Board and conducted by Dr Polly
Li of the Chinese University of Hong Kong for understanding
the difficulties and burdens faced by the group of patients,
in particular severe ones, and the corresponding carers was
completed in 2020. With the findings of the project, Dr Li assisted
PMAA to design and conduct a series of carers’ workshops. During
the year, a total of 31 sessions of the workshop was arranged for
52 carers. According to the post-workshop assessments, most
participants did benefit from the programme and alleviation of
their care burden was observed.

To reach out to more patients of different spectrums, the
Committee also continued to fund other rehabilitation projects
including the Tai Chi classes, health education talks, music
therapy classes, etc. Unfortunately, progresses of all these projects
were affected by the epidemic and the requirement of social
distancing measures, but patients still treasured the opportunities
to rejoin the programme when the epidemic was more stable
during some of the months in the year.

To conclude, the Committee would like to express our heartfelt
gratitude to our members for materialising all the above work,
in particular for overcoming all the stiff challenges during
the epidemic. With the objective of striving for continuous
improvement to the rehabilitation programmes, the Committee will
continue to enhance existing rehabilitation programmes and also
explore new initiatives to provide the best possible rehabilitation
services to our patients.
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COMMITTEE ON PREVENTION

As the Committee on Prevention has always been committed to
conducting and financing education and publicity programmes
to promote the prevention of pneumoconiosis and mesothelioma,
we seize every opportunity to spread the prevention messages.
Although some of our programmes have inevitably been affected by
the outbreak of the COVID-19, we were able to continue running
different programmes during the year and keep our energy for
bringing innovative programmes to our stakeholders. The total
expenditure spent on Prevention in 2020 was $20.92 million,
showing a decrease of $4.06 million as compared with 2019.

In order to ensure that our media spending is cost-effective, the
Committee conducts evaluations regularly. The project entitled
“An analysis of the effectiveness of the Board’s current campaign
and optimisation of future publicity strategies” conducted by a
professional market research company commissioned by the Board
was completed in 2020. With this comprehensive review, a number
of insightful findings and recommendations have been reported,
such as using embedded TV commercials as a more effective
means of promotion. The Committee would leverage these findings
for formulating our advertising matrix and strategies in the coming
years.

Launching mass promotion programmes in different media to
reach out to the general public and enhance their awareness
of preventing pneumoconiosis and mesothelioma is one of the
important strategies of the Committee. These include placing
commercials in TVB, Hong Kong Open TV, Now TV, ViuTV,
Commercial Radio 1, Metro Radio, MTR, bus stations and different
publications. To suit the changing viewing habits of construction
workers and the general public, we also launched advertising
campaigns in different e-marketing channels in 2020. With the
innovative and professional inputs of Committee members, we
completed the production of a new series of commercials in
December, in which a charming brand new “Dusty Boy” would
become the Board’s mascot. It is expected that this vivid and lively
mascot will be on-screen in 2021.
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In addition to the mass media campaign, the Committee would
never forget to provide tailor-made programme to stakeholders
working in the construction industry. With the overwhelming
responses from the industries on the project “Cordless Drill with
Dust Removal System Subsidy Scheme for Small and Medium-
sized Enterprises engaged in the Construction, Renovation and
Maintenance Works Industries” first launched in 2018, the
Committee continued this project in 2020, and the response was
equally encouraging. The Board had subsidised a total of 1 060
cordless drills with a total amount of about $1.78 million during
the year. Follow-up questionnaires have been distributed to the
enterprises’ representatives/employers and we are delighted to
learn that most of the respondents found the scheme beneficial to
them as well as the employees by helping them create a less dusty
and healthier work environment.

To achieve synergies, the Committee continued to jointly organise
the “Occupational Health Award” with the Occupational Safety &
Health Council, the Labour Department, the Department of Health
and the Occupational Deafness Compensation Board. Although
the number of applications decreased from 52 sites last year to
41 in 2020 due to the epidemic, we were grateful for the efforts
that responsible persons of these construction sites have paid
in dust control. We are confident that with various stakeholders’
concerted effort, a higher level of occupational safety and health
of the construction industry can be achieved such that a safer
and healthier work environment for construction workers can be
ensured.

The Committee always treasures the contribution made by the
unions and non-government organisations in joining hands for
promoting the prevention messages, and has been running a
sponsorship scheme for providing financial support to them
for conducting pneumoconiosis and/or mesothelioma related
prevention programmes. During the year, the Board has sponsored
various organisations to run different programmes such as holding
seminars at construction sites so that workers could receive
prevention information at their workplace.
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Inevitably, some of our programmes had been adversely affected by
the epidemic situation. For example, only 753 workers completed
the examinations under our 'Medical Surveillance Programme’
this year as compared with 5 659 completed in 2019, as the
programme had been suspended for more than 10 months during
the year due to the tightened infection control measures. The
Committee has been working closely and cautiously with the
service provider and various experts, hoping that a comprehensive
and stringent precaution plan could be worked out so as to resume
the programme as early as possible in 2021.

Finally, the Committee would like to extend the heartfelt
appreciation to all the stakeholders, who have dedicated
themselves to fostering occupational health and safety culture
in the construction industry, especially on the prevention of
pneumoconiosis and mesothelioma during the year. Note of
gratitude is also extended to our members whose tireless efforts
have facilitated the launching of various programmes. With the
concerted efforts of all of us, we firmly believe that the industry’s
concern on pneumoconiosis and mesothelioma will be further
enhanced.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
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To the members of Pneumoconiosis Compensation Fund Board
(Established in Hong Kong under the Pneumoconiosis and
Mesothelioma (Compensation) Ordinance)

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of Pneumoconiosis
Compensation Fund Board (the “Board”) set out on pages 30 to
72, which comprise the statement of financial position as at 31
December 2020, and the statement of comprehensive income,
the statement of changes in funds and reserves and the statement
of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the financial
statements, including a summary of significant accounting
policies.

In our opinion, the financial statements give a true and fair view
of the financial position of the Board as at 31 December 2020,
and of its financial performance and its cash flows for the year
then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA").

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing (“HKSAs"”) issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s
responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements section of
our report. We are independent of the Board in accordance with
the HKICPA's Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the
“Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we
have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our opinion.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

Information other than the financial statements
and auditor’s report thereon

The Board members are responsible for the other information. The
other information comprises the information included in the annual
report, other than the financial statements and our auditor’s report
thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the
other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our
responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent
with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the
audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on
the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report
that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of the Board members for the
financial statements

The Board members are responsible for the preparation of the
financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance
with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA, and for such internal control
as the Board members determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the Board members are
responsible for assessing the Board’s ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
the Board members either intend to liquidate the Board or to cease
operations or have no realistic alternative but to do so.
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Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the
financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an
auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Our report is made
solely to you, as a body, in accordance with our agreed terms
of engagement, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the
contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs
will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably
be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on
the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

° Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design
and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a
material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than
for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control.

° Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the
audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing
an opinion on the effectiveness of the Board’s internal
control.

° Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the Board members.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

° Conclude on the appropriateness of the Board members’
use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based
on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material
uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may
cast significant doubt on the Board’s ability to continue as
a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty
exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the financial statements
or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion.
Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained
up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events
or conditions may cause the Board to cease to continue as a
going concern.

o Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of
the financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

We communicate with the Board members regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant
audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal
control that we identify during our audit.

Ernst & Young

Certified Public Accountants
27/F, One Taikoo Place

979 King's Road

Quarry Bay, Hong Kong

21 June 2021
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STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

FHNRZE

Year ended 31 December 2020 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) #% 20204 12 B 31 B I-5E (LABTYIR)

Notes 2020 2019
BisE $ $
REVENUE ['ON
Levy income A 4 358,404,227 336,279,441
OTHER INCOME AND GAIN = PN E
Bank interest income RITHLSHA 36,820,728 39,733,793
Interest income on debt investments iz sk ANz1E 2 ERIEE
at amortised costs 2 BUTA 10,542,275 16,239,547
Dividend income from listed A EMESERE
securities A 14,859,303 16,980,629
Ex-gratia fund administration REFEEHTWELZ 1T
charge received =g 138,933 139,004
Penalty on late payments of levies — FUESEEATUELZ E15K 148,842 257,677
Sundry income FETRMA 1,433 1
Fair value gain on financial assets  Z AR BETAEBRZ
at fair value through profit or loss @ g&E 2 AR BEW 1,466,325 15,568,100
63,977,839 88,918,751
EXPENDITURE X
Operating and administrative giENMTHHE ¢
expenditures
Pneumoconiosis and mesothelioma fHEEIRITEE &
compensations M fEEE (209,100,275) (212,997,402)
Project expenses ABFX (39,670,614) (48,670,847)
Employee benefit expenses BEHMEENEY 5 (18,348,663) (17,497,834)
Administrative expenses THRAZ 6 (2,085,271) (2,968,246)
Medical examination fees HIEER 7 (6,989,310) (6,751,810)
Depreciation e 9 (1,130,177) (1,066,292)
Amortisation of intangible assets A AR 10 (214,033) (177,331)
Capital expenditure B (698,255) (633,493)
(278,236,598) (290,763,255)
SURPLUS FOR THE YEAR FERH 144,145,468 134,434,937
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE LOSS Hib2EEE
Fair value loss on equity investments #Z A4 BEFAEMEEWZRZ
designated at fair value through BEBRAKE 2 A1 BEEIE
other comprehensive income (48,099,798) (7,223,992)
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME Z2&2mUKFHA%LE
FOR THE YEAR 96,045,670 127,210,945

The notes on pages 35 to 72 form part of these financial statements.
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
I EEE TS

31 December 2020 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) 20204 12 531 B (LABLYIR)

Notes 2020 2019
P EE $ $

NON-CURRENT ASSETS RBEE
Property, plant and equipment LE N 9 21,182,572 22,139,239
Intangible assets B AE 10 677,297 812,930
Debt investments at amortised cost  $i spk At 8 2 EISIEE 11 — 14,978,649
Equity investments designated at R AABEFAEMEE

fair value through Wz 2 B E R AR E

other comprehensive income 12 139,274,575 194,583,881
Financial assets at fair value BARBEFABZEZ

through profit or loss SREE 13 311,990,100 224,228,675
Total non-current assets B EERRE 473,124,544 456,743,374
CURRENT ASSETS REBEE
Accounts receivable FEUBR K 14 16,178,435 26,367,698
Interest receivables R L 1) 5, 16,867,438 19,782,651
Prepayments and deposits BRRERZS 99,473 244,537
Advance payment for compensation JEX#ES 72,468 369,658
Debt investments at amortised cost Lt EEN A& 2 EIGIRE 11 14,996,409 770,000,000
Time deposits with original maturity RERB=EAEZNH >

of more than three months THITFR 15 2,383,273,580 1,558,421,907
Cash and cash equivalents HERIBESZEEY 16 43,482,975 21,513,295
Total current assets TENAEEAARE 2,474,970,778  2,396,699,746
CURRENT LIABILITY REBAE
Accruals and other payables RESH 2hE I b RN 2R 17 7,965,106 9,345,785
NET CURRENT ASSETS B EERE 2,467,005,672  2,387,353,961
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT  ##EHABE®E

LIABILITIES 2,940,130,216 2,844,097,335
NON-CURRENT LIABILITY kRBEE
Provision for long service payments EHIfRH& € & 18 107,211 120,000

Net assets

BEFE

2,940,023,005

2,843,977,335




STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

I EEE TS

31 December 2020 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

2020412 A 31 B (LUETTHIR)

~

Notes 2020 2019

BaE $ $
FUNDS AND RESERVES HEeRf#E
Accumulated fund REES 19 2,882,501,717 2,730,280,186
Research fund MEES 19 11,759,334 12,381,470
Prevention fund EfEe 19 21,420,837 22,340,155
Rehabilitation fund EREe 19 1,255,796 6,951,955
Computer systems fund BEMERES 19 677,297 812,930
Capital reserve B 19 21,182,572 22,139,239
Investment reserve A HE 19 1,225,452 49,071,400
Total funds and reserves Ee LB 2,940,023,005  2,843,977,335
Ir CHAN Sau-kit, Allan BRIE A TR2AT
Chairman FE

The notes on pages 35 to 72 form part of these financial statements.
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STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN FUNDS AND RESERVES
RERGEREINE

Year ended 31 December 2020 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

HZE 20204 12 B 31 BIEEE (CABTTIIR)

Funds and
reserves
HeR#E
$

Balance at 1 January 2019

R201951 A 1 B#sk

2,716,766,390

Surplus for the year

Other comprehensive loss

Fair value loss on financial assets at
fair value through other comprehensive
income

EEERR

Hit 2R
BAnBEFAEMEAKE
EMEEZAABEREE

134,434,937

(7,223,992)

Balances at 31 December 2019 and at
1 January 2020

R20195 12831 HKX 202051 A 1 B#ER

2,843,977,335

Surplus for the year

Other comprehensive loss

Fair value loss on financial assets at
fair value through other comprehensive
income

Hitt 2R
BAanBEFARMEERKSEZ
TMEEZAABERE

144,145,468

(48,099,798)

Balance at 31 December 2020

720205 12 B 31 A&

2,940,023,005

The notes on pages 35 to 72 form part of these financial statements.
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STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

RERSEXR

Year ended 31 December 2020 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) #% 20204 12 B 31 B I-5E (LABTYIR)

Notes 2020 2019
i3 $ $
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING #&EZBRESHE
ACTIVITIES
Cash generated from operations e EEHEEA RS K
and net cash flows from FIREMAE
operating activities 20(a) 91,021,336 40,431,555
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING RETBHRERE
ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from redemption of debt  FEEIIRE SR AT & 2 EHIEE
investments at amortised cost 770,000,000 —
Proceeds from disposals of equity  HERARBEIAEMEE
investments designated at W2 IEERARE 2
fair value through other {8 k1E
comprehensive income 12 7,776,075 —

Purchases of financial assets at
fair value through profit or loss
Purchases of items of property,
plant and equipment
Additions to intangible assets
Increase in time deposits with
original maturity of more
than three months
Interest received
Dividends received

BARDAEBENARBREZ
TREE (86,295,100)
BAME - B MREEE

(173,510)
NEEBVEE (78,400)
REBB=EARIH
TE BT IE
(824,851,673)
WHLRE 50,278,216
OB B 14,292,736

(81,497,500)

(753,738)
(283,189)

(21,175,650)
54,549,001
15,530,703

Net cash flows used in
investing activities

REESAAE SR HFRE
(69,051,656)

(33,630,373)

NET INCREASE IN CASH AND ReRRESEEY 2 FEEEM

CASH EQUIVALENTS 21,969,680 6,801,182
Cash and cash equivalents at REVNZRE BT EE

beginning of year 21,513,295 14,712,113
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS REEZHRERRSEEYEE

AT END OF YEAR 43,482,975 21,513,295
ANALYSIS OF BALANCE OF ReRBESEEYIN

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Cash and bank balances 4 RIBITLERS 16 43,482,975 21,513,295

The notes on pages 35 to 72 form part of these financial statements.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

GENERAL INFORMATION

Pneumoconiosis Compensation Fund Board (“the Board”)
is established with a role as a compensation body, and to
engage in the areas of rehabilitation, prevention and research
in respect of pneumoconiosis. The address of its registered
office is 15/F Nam Wo Hong Building, 148 Wing Lok Street,
Sheung Wan, Hong Kong.

With the enactment of the Pneumoconiosis (Compensation)
(Amendment) Ordinance 1993 (“the Ordinance”) on
9 July 1993, all those pneumoconiotics who were
compensated by the Board between 1 January 1981 and
8 July 1993 can make application to the Board to receive
further compensation and other payments under the new
compensation scheme. After re-assessment is made by the
Pneumoconiosis Medical Board and approval granted, the
applicant will receive monthly payments of compensation in
respect of the difference between the degree of incapacity
determined by the Pneumoconiosis Medical Board on the
re-assessment and the degree of permanent incapacity
previously determined by the Board under the Ordinance
prior to its amendment.

From 9 July 1993 onwards, persons suffering from
pneumoconiosis receives monthly payments of compensation
instead of a lump-sum compensation. The Board’s liability
to compensation arises when an applicant is assessed
by the Pneumoconiosis Medical Board to be suffering
from pneumoconiosis and a certificate is issued by the
Commissioner for Labour of the applicant’s fulfilment of the
residency requirement.

On 18 April 2008, the Pneumoconiosis (Compensation)
Ordinance was amended to include provisions to provide
compensation to persons suffering from mesothelioma.
Accordingly, the name of the Pneumoconiosis (Compensation)
Ordinance has been renamed as the Pneumoconiosis and
Mesothelioma (Compensation) Ordinance. Applicants who
are assessed by the Pneumoconiosis Medical Board to
be suffering from mesothelioma are subject to the same
eligibility criteria and payment of compensation which are
consistent with applicants suffering from pneumoconiosis.

7} 55 ¥ 2% Biil 5

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (AEITHIR)
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
7l 55 ¥ 2% Biil 5%

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (AE7TdIR)

On 1 September 2008, the Pneumoconiosis and
Mesothelioma (Compensation) Ordinance was further
amended to allow patients with pneumoconiosis or
mesothelioma to seek treatment from registered Chinese
medicine practitioners and claim reimbursement of the
medical expenses and cost of medicines for the treatment of
pneumoconiosis or mesothelioma, subject to the maximum
amount of claims as prescribed in the Pneumoconiosis and
Mesothelioma (Compensation) Ordinance.

2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION

These financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
(“HKFRSs”) (which include all Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards
(“HKASs”) and Interpretations) issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA") and
accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong. They
have been prepared under the historical cost convention,
except for equity investments designated at fair value
through other comprehensive income and financial assets at
fair value through profit or loss, which have been measured
at fair value. These financial statements are presented in
Hong Kong dollars (“HK$"), which is the Board’s functional
currency.

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND

DISCLOSURES

The Board has adopted the Conceptual Framework for
Financial Reporting 2018 (the “Conceptual Framework”) and
Amendments to HKAS 1 and HKAS 8 Definition of Material
for the first time for the current year’s financial statements,
which are applicable to the Board. The adoption of the
Conceptual Framework and revised HKFRSs has had no
significant financial effect on these financial statements.

2.1

2.2

R2008F9 A 1R » (PRI E R KB
7B (/i 1E) RODBIF L EN - BRFLABA
4n B i B2 #5070 & s ok e B2 78 1) s A1 o B8 SR
v AREEZEEHFRETHEE(NE
BnE R R ER B (HE) GREDAEA LR

DaRBEHEER

AR

BUBHRRORBEETESAMAGEMZ
(BEUBREEAD(BIEMBCEBI R
SR (BAEFEADRRE) URE
BERBRANZETRAGH - FRIEERAR
BEFARMEE RS ZBARERIZAR
EBEMABZZSREES  HRRELK
TEmE  WEEAABERNE - ZFWH
BERABT(ETD 27 BLAEEER
BEZEER -

B ERRRRE 22T

Ao ZEERAFEMBHHRRT B RRNE
AnEeEE®r —FT—/\FRUBRE
#BRER((BSERD) REE G LS
1ERBEEGHEUNFSREAZEEZE
AT o BRI SRR R ik SRS AT BB B 15 3
SEAEZEMERRLBEANBEE



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
7} 55 ¥ 2% Biil 5

2.3ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE

HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS

The Board has not early applied any of the new or revised
HKFRSs that have been issued but are not yet effective for
the accounting year ended 31 December 2020 in these
financial statements. Among these HKFRSs, the following are
expected to be relevant to the Board’s financial statements
upon becoming effective:
Amendments to HKFRS 3 Reference to the Conceptual
Framework 2

Interest Rate Benchmark
Reform — Phase 21

Amendments to HKFRS 9,
HKAS 39, HKFRS 7,
HKFRS 4 and HKFRS 16

Amendments to HKAS 1 Classification of Liabilities as
Current or Non-current *

Disclosure of Accounting
Policies 3

Definition of Accounting
Estimates 3

Property, Plant and Equipment:
Proceeds before Intended
Use?

Onerous Contracts — Cost of
Fulfilling a Contract ?

Amendments to HKFRS 1,
HKFRS 9, lllustrative
Examples accompanying
HKFRS 16, and HKAS 412

Amendments to HKAS 1
Amendments to HKAS 8

Amendments to HKAS 16

Amendments to HKAS 37

Annual Improvements to
HKFRSs 2018-2020

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(LAETTIIR)
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (AE7TdIR)

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January ! 202141 A1 Bk &Gz FEHHE
2021 AR

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2 202241 A1 Bz &G FEHHE
2022 AR

8 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 3 202341 A1 Bk &G FEHHE
2023 AR

4 As a consequence of the amendments to HKAS 1, Hong Kong
Interpretation 5 Presentation of Financial Statements —
Classification by the Borrower of a Term Loan that Contains a
Repayment on Demand Clause was revised in October 2020 to
align the corresponding wording with no change in conclusion

The Board is in the process of making an assessment of

4 HRABEHEE LR B R
BESHUYBHREZZHR — BHANHEH
BIZEFKEE RN EHEN D EHER
20204 10 A#EATIEET + LMEMAERE AR
B—RimiEm T

EeZ 8 @R EREREAZENT REE

the impact of these new and revised HKFRSs upon initial R BB ER SR TR - D
application but is not yet in a position to state whether these REETEE L S H ] NS R BB ISR s 2

new and revised HKFRSs would have a significant impact on
the Board'’s results of operations and financial position.

AlgEHES R B G 2 SEXEA MR
BRERERTE -

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2.4 xEGFHEERHE
POLICIES
Fair value measurement NREEE

The Board measures its equity investments and investment
funds at fair value at the end of each reporting period.
Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an
asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date.
The fair value measurement is based on the presumption
that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability
takes place either in the principal market for the asset or
liability, or in the absence of a principal market, in the most
advantageous market for the asset or liability. The principal
or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the
Board. The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured
using the assumptions that market participants would use
when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market
participants act in their economic best interest.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Board uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in
the circumstances and for which sufficient data are available
to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant
observable inputs and minimising the use of unobservable
inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured
or disclosed in the financial statements are categorised
within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based
on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement as a whole:

Level 1 — based on quoted prices (unadjusted) in
active markets for identical assets or
liabilities

Level 2 — based on valuation techniques for which the

lowest level input that is significant to the
fair value measurement is observable, either
directly or indirectly

Level 3 — based on valuation techniques for which the
lowest level input that is significant to the
fair value measurement is unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial
statements on a recurring basis, the Board determines whether
transfer have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by
reassessing categorisation (based on the lowest level input
that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole)
at the end of each reporting period.
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (AEITHIR)
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (AE7TdIR)

Impairment of non-financial assets

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when annual
impairment testing for an asset is required (other than
financial assets), the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated.
An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of the asset’s
or cash-generating unit's value in use and its fair value less
costs of disposal, and is determined for an individual asset,
unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that are
largely independent of those from other assets or groups of
assets, in which case the recoverable amount is determined
for the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs.

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying amount
of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. In assessing
value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted
to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that
reflects current market assessments of the time value of
money and the risks specific to the asset. An impairment loss
is charged to profit or loss in the period in which it arises.

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting
period as to whether there is an indication that previously
recognised impairment losses may no longer exist or may
have decreased. If such an indication exists, the recoverable
amount is estimated. A previously recognised impairment loss
of an asset is reversed only if there has been a change in the
estimates used to determine the recoverable amount of that
asset, but not to an amount higher than the carrying amount
that would have been determined (net of any depreciation/
amortisation) had no impairment loss been recognised for the
asset in prior years. A reversal of such an impairment loss is
credited to profit or loss in the period in which it arises.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Related parties

A party is considered to be related to the Board if:

(a)

or

(b)

the party is a person or a close member of that person’s
family and that person

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

has control or joint control over the Board;
has significant influence over the Board; or

is a member of the key management personnel of
the Board or of a parent of the Board;

the party is an entity where any of the following
conditions applies;

(iii)

(iv)

(vi)

the entity and the Board are members of the same
Board;

one entity is an associate or joint venture of the
other entity (or of a parent, subsidiary or fellow
subsidiary of the other entity);

the entity and the Board are joint ventures of the
same third party;

one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and
the other entity is an associate of the third entity;

the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for
the benefit of employees of either the Board or an
entity related to the Board;

the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
person identified in (a); a person identified in (a)
(i) has significant influence over the entity or is a
member of the key management personnel of the
entity (or of a parent of the entity); and the entity,
or any member of a group of which it is a part,
provides key management personnel services to
the Board or to the parent of the Board.

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
7l 55 ¥ 2% Biil 5%

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (AE7TdIR)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and any impairment losses. The
cost of an item of property, plant and equipment comprises
its purchase price and any directly attributable costs of
bringing the asset to its working condition and location for its
intended use. Expenditure incurred after items of property,
plant and equipment have been put into operation, such as
repairs and maintenance, is normally charged to profit or loss
in the period in which it is incurred. In situations where the
recognition criteria are satisfied, the expenditure for a major
inspection is capitalised in the carrying amount of the asset
as a replacement. Where significant parts of property, plant
and equipment are required to be replaced at intervals, the
Board recognises such parts as individual assets with specific
useful lives and depreciates them accordingly.

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to write
off the cost of each item of property, plant and equipment to
its residual value over its estimated useful life. The principal
annual rates used for this purpose are as follows:

Owned assets

Properties 50 years

Leasehold improvements Over the shorter of the
lease terms and 10 years

Computer equipment 5 years

Right-of-use asset
Land Over the shorter of the
lease terms and 50 years

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment
have different useful lives, the cost of that item is allocated
on a reasonable basis among the parts and each part is
depreciated separately.

Residual values, useful lives and the depreciation method
are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at least at each
financial year end.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

An item of property, plant and equipment including any
significant part initially recognised is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected
from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss on disposal or
retirement recognised in profit or loss in the year the asset
is derecognised is the difference between the net sales
proceeds and the carrying amount of the relevant asset.

Intangible assets

Purchased computer software is stated at cost less any
impairment losses and is amortised on the straight-line basis
over its estimated useful life of 5 years.

Leases

A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys a
right to control the use of an identified asset for a period
of time in exchange for consideration. Control is conveyed
where the customer has both the right to obtain substantially
all of the economic benefits from use of the identified asset
and the right to direct the use of the identified asset. All
leases with a term of more than 12 months are recognised
as assets representing the right of use of the underlying
asset and liabilities representing the obligation to make lease
payments, unless the underlying asset is of low value.

Both the assets and the liabilities are initially measured on a
present value basis. Right-of-use assets are recognised under
property, plant and equipment and are measured at cost or
valuation less any accumulated depreciation and impairment
losses, and adjusted for any remeasurement of the lease
liabilities. Right-of-use assets are depreciated on a straight-
line basis over the shorter of the useful lives of the assets
and the lease terms. Lease liabilities are initially measured
at the present value of lease payments to be made under the
lease terms and subsequently adjusted by the effect of the
interest on and the settlement of the lease liabilities, and the
re-measurement arising from any reassessment of the lease
liabilities or lease modifications.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (AE7TdIR)

Financial assets

Accounts receivable that do not contain a significant financial
component or for which the Board has applied the practical
expedient of not adjusting the effect of a significant financial
component are measured at the transaction price determined
under HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers. All
the other financial assets are initially recognised at fair value
plus transaction costs that are attributable to the acquisition
of the financial assets, except in the case of financial assets
recorded at fair value through profit or loss. Regular way
purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised on
the trade date, that is, the date when the Board commits to
purchase or sell the assets.

(a) Classification and measurement
Debt instruments are measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest rate method, subject to
impairment if the assets are held for the collection
of contractual cash flows where those contractual
cash flows represent solely payments of principal and
interest.

Debt instruments that do not meet the criteria for
amortised cost or as financial assets at fair value though
other comprehensive income are measured at fair
value through profit or loss. Interest income for these
financial assets is included in finance income.

Equity investments are measured at fair value through
profit or loss unless, on initial recognition, the Board
has irrevocably elected to designate such investments
that are not held for trading as equity investments
at fair value through other comprehensive income.
Dividends of such investments are recognised in profit
or loss when the Board’s right to receive payment
is established. Changes in the fair value of such
investments are recognised in other comprehensive
income and are never recycled to profit or loss even
when the assets are sold.
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(b)

(c)

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Impairment

The Board applies the expected credit loss model on
all the financial assets that are subject to impairment.
For accounts receivable without a significant financial
component, the Board applies the simplified approach
which requires impairment allowances to be measured
at lifetime expected credit losses.

For other financial assets, impairment allowances are
recognised under the general approach where expected
credit losses are recognised in two stages. For credit
exposures where there has not been a significant
increase in credit risk since initial recognition, the
Board is required to provide for credit losses that
result from possible default events within the next 12
months. For those credit exposures where there has
been a significant increase in credit risk since initial
recognition, a loss allowance is required for credit
losses expected over the remaining life of the exposure
irrespective of the timing of the default.

The Board considers a default has occurred when a
financial asset is more than 90 days past due unless
the Board has reasonable and supportable information
to demonstrate that a more appropriate default criterion
should be applied.

Derecognition

Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to
receive cash flows from the assets have expired; or
where the Board has transferred its contractual rights
to receive the cash flows of the financial assets and has
transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership; or where control is not retained.

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (AE7TdIR)

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities are initially recognised at the fair value
of the consideration received less directly attributable
transaction costs. After initial recognition, they are
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest rate method.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when they are

extinguished, i.e., when the obligation is discharged or
cancelled, or expires.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the
net amount is reported in the statement of financial position
if there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the
recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on
a net basis, or to realise the assets and settle the liabilities
simultaneously.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and
cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and demand
deposits, and short term highly liquid investments that are
readily convertible into known amounts of cash, are subject
to an insignificant risk of changes in value, and have a short
maturity of generally within three months when acquired, less
bank overdrafts which are repayable on demand and form an
integral part of the Board’s cash management.

For the purpose of the statement of financial position, cash
and bank balances comprise cash on hand and at banks,
including term deposits, which are not restricted as to use.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Provisions

A provision is recognised when a present obligation (legal or
constructive) has arisen as a result of a past event and it is
probable that a future outflow of resources will be required to
settle the obligation, provided that a reliable estimate can be
made of the amount of the obligation.

When the effect of discounting is material, the amount
recognised for a provision is the present value at the end
of the reporting period of the future expenditures expected
to be required to settle the obligation. The increase in the
discounted present value amount arising from the passage of
time is recognised in profit or loss.

Contingent liabilities

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from
past events and whose existence will only be confirmed by
the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain
future events not wholly within the control of the Board. It
can also be a present obligation arising from past events
that is not recognised because it is not probable that outflow
of economic resources will be required or the amount of
obligation cannot be measured reliably.

A contingent liability is not recognised but is disclosed in
the notes to the financial statements, if any. When a change

in the probability of an outflow occurs so that outflow is
probable, it will then be recognised as a provision.

Income tax

The Board is exempted from Hong Kong profits tax under
Section 88 of the Hong Kong Inland Revenue Ordinance.

Revenue recognition

Levy income, penalty on late payments of levies and ex-gratia
fund administration charge are recognised when the Board
becomes entitled to them and it is probable that they will be
received.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (AE7TdIR)

Interest income is recognised on an accrual basis using the
effective interest method by applying the rate that exactly
discounts the estimated future cash receipts over the
expected life of the financial instrument or a shorter period,
when appropriate, to the net carrying amount of the financial
asset.

Dividend income is recognised when the shareholders’ right
to receive payment has been established, it is probable that
the economic benefits associated with the dividend will
flow to the Board and the amount of the dividend can be
measured reliably.

Employee benefits

Paid leave carried forward

The Board provides paid annual leave to its employees under
their employment contracts on a calendar year basis. Under
certain circumstances, such leave which remains untaken as
at the end of the reporting period is permitted to be carried
forward and utilised by the respective employees in the
following year. An accrual is made at the end of the reporting
period for the expected future cost of such paid leave earned
during the year by the employees and carried forward.

Pension schemes

The Board operates a mandatory provident fund scheme
under the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance
(the “MPF Scheme”) and a defined contribution retirement
scheme under the Occupational Retirement Scheme
Ordinance (the “ORSO Scheme”) for its employees.

Contributions are made based on a percentage of the
employees’ basic salaries and are charged to profit or loss
as they become payable in accordance with the rules of the
MPF Scheme and the ORSO Scheme. The Board’s employer
contributions vest fully with the employees when contributed
into the MPF Scheme. The vesting percentage of the Board’s
employer contribution is in accordance with the employees’
years of services when contributed into the ORSO Scheme.
Forfeited contributions in respect of employees with leave the
Board before their contributions fully vest are available to the
other employees in the ORSO Scheme.

The assets of the MPF Scheme and the ORSO Scheme are
held separately from those of the Board in an independently
administered fund.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES

The preparation of the Board’s financial statements
requires management to make judgements, estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues,
expenses, assets and liabilities, and their accompanying
disclosures, and the disclosure of contingent liabilities.
Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could
result in outcomes that could require a material adjustment
to the carrying amounts of the assets or liabilities affected in
the future.

Judgements

In the process of applying the Board’s accounting policies,
management has made the following judgements, apart from
those involving estimations, which have the most significant
effect on the amounts recognised in the financial statements:

Classification of debt investments at amortised cost

The Board follows the guidance of HKFRS 9 Financial
Instruments on classifying non-derivative financial assets
with fixed or determinable payments and fixed maturity
at amortised cost. This classification requires significant
judgement. In making this judgement, the Board determines
the appropriate business models and assesses the “solely
payments of principal and interest” requirements for financial
assets. The unlisted bonds and certificates of deposits were
classified as debt investments at amortised cost as the Board
has determined that the objective of holding the investments
is to collect contractual cash flows of principal and interest.

Estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key
sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting
period, that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
within the next financial year, are described below.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (AE7TdIR)

Provision for expected credit losses on accounts receivable
The Board uses a provision matrix to calculate ECLs for
accounts receivable. The provision rates are based on days
past due for groupings of various customer segments that
have similar loss patterns. The provision matrix is initially
based on the Board’s historical observed default rates.
The Board will calibrate the matrix to adjust the historical
credit loss experience with forward-looking information.
For instance, if forecast economic conditions (i.e., gross
domestic product) are expected to deteriorate over the next
year which can lead to an increased number of defaults in the
construction sector, the historical default rates are adjusted.
At each reporting date, the historical observed default rates
are updated and changes in the forward-looking estimates are
analysed.

The assessment of the correlation among historical observed
default rates, forecast economic conditions and ECLs is a
significant estimate. The amount of ECLs is sensitive to
changes in circumstances and forecast economic conditions.
The Board’s historical credit loss experience and forecast
of economic conditions may also not be representative of a
customer’s actual default in the future. The information about
the ECLs on the Board’s accounts receivable is disclosed in
note 14 to the financial statements.

Provisions

Judgement is involved in determining whether a present
obligation exists and in estimating the probability, timing and
amount of any outflows.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

Provisions for legal proceedings typically require a higher
degree of judgement than other types of provisions. When
matters are at an early stage, accounting judgements can be
difficult because of the high degree of uncertainty associated
with determining whether a present obligation exists, and
estimating the probability and amount of any outflows that
may arise. As matters progress, the Board members and legal
advisers evaluate on an ongoing basis whether provisions
should be recognised, revising previous judgements and
estimates as appropriate. At more advanced stages, it is
typically easier to make judgements and estimates around a
better defined set of possible outcomes. However, the amount
provisioned can remain very sensitive to the assumptions
used. There could be a wide range of possible outcomes
for any pending legal proceedings. As a result, it is often
not practicable to quantify a range of possible outcomes for
individual matters. It is also not practicable to meaningfully
quantify ranges of potential outcomes in aggregate for
these types of provisions because of the diverse nature
and circumstances of such matters and the wide range of
uncertainties involved.
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LEVY INCOME 4. BFERUWA
2020 2019
$ $
Private sector MATEE 184,115,138 173,735,774

Public sector NHETE

Mass Transit Railway BETIR 13,088,474 14,547,096
Port and Airport Development Scheme &0 M#IS3ETZ 33,334,041 23,583,879
West Kowloon Cultural District mhE bR 3,240,239 1,754,269
Others Hih 124,401,055 122,484,130
Quarry industry AiEE 225,280 174,293
358,404,227 336,279,441
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In accordance with the provision of Section 35 and
schedule 5 in Part VIl of the amended Pneumoconiosis
and Mesothelioma (Compensation) Ordinance, the levy rate
was 0.25% on the value of (a) all construction operations
exceeding HK$1,000,000 undertaken in Hong Kong with
the tender for which being submitted on or after 18 June
2000 and (b) on all quarrying products produced in Hong
Kong with effect from 18 June 2000. Effective 20 August
2012, the levy rate has been changed to 0.15% on the value
of (a) all construction operations exceeding HK$1,000,000
undertaken in Hong Kong with the tender for which being
submitted on or after 20 August 2012 and (b) on all
quarrying products produced in Hong Kong with effect from
20 August 2012. Effective 30 July 2018, the levy threshold
on construction operations increased from HK$1,000,000 to
HK$3,000,000.

REFERT 2RI B R R B (H
E)IEBIEVIE D35 E LK RSB E
BHREE0.25%  BAR (a) TBEABE
TM{EE#E1,000,000T 22 T2
MEZEEZMN 2000F6 5 18 B ABIER
K (b) 20004 6 A 18 B R IAB &5 7
W2FEREER - H201248HA20H
H o EMARERGKEO0.15% - EAN ()i
FEARBHEITIMEER1E 1,000,000 2 #
BEIRR MESEENR2012F8A20H 5
ABIES K (b) 201248 A 208 M A
BEEARARZMALEER - 820184
7A308#  WERETRZHHMEDH
1,000,000 7tHem ZE 3,000,000 TG °

EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES BEFMRENRX
2020 2019
$ $
Wages, salaries and allowances TE& - ¥4 &2eh 17,046,058 16,384,982
Staff medical insurance B 8 B2 R IR 180,589 192,557
Staff compensation insurance B EREERR 24,995 24,524
Pension scheme contributions BRI EHEIHR
(defined contribution schemes) (R 2R IRGT2))
ORSO Scheme B R IRET & 599,182 550,120
MPF Scheme BB S 337,652 331,651
Provision for unutilised annual leave RERFRZBE 160,187 14,000
18,348,663 17,497,834
No Board members received any fees or emoluments in BZEREARFEANRNESZESRE R

respect of their services rendered to the Board during the
year (2019: Nil).

BRI & S E AR (20194 © &) -
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (AEITHIR)

6. ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES 6. 1THERIX
2020 2019
$ $
Auditor’s remuneration T EREM BN &
Audit services EAZIRTE 180,000 180,000
Other services HAb RS 10,000 10,000
Impairment/(reversal of impairment) of  FEWERFURIE ~ CRERE])
accounts receivable, net (note 14) FEE (fisE14) (78,379) 359,232
Legal and professional fees FRREXER 563,964 857,804
Printing and stationery ENRI K2 32 4% 122,235 108,275
Others HAith 1,287,451 1,452,935
2,085,271 2,968,246
7. MEDICAL EXAMINATION FEES 7. HEEH
Medical examination fees represent fees paid and payable HIEER AR EERITE PR & BB (F
to the Government of the Hong Kong Special Administrative B)1&H1)EE 23 R 23AMIE - E&T RAR
Region in respect of medical examinations conducted by NTEBFITRIEBRNERBEBERTER
Pneumoconiosis Medical Board under Sections 23 and 23A HEZEGMKMZHIGEER -
of the Pneumoconiosis and Mesothelioma (Compensation)
Ordinance.
8. INCOME TAX 8. FBHMExX
Hong Kong profits tax has not been provided as the Board is WESESFSHREE  REARESE
exempted by virtue of Section 88 of the Hong Kong Inland B gIREE BTG IR ) E S8 ikimERH %

Revenue Ordinance.
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LABTTYIR)

p

9. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 9. W - HEERFE
Right-
of-use
asset Owned assets
EREEE BEEE
Leasehold Computer
Land  Properties improvements  equipment Total Total
HENE
BREIR
i nE HELH BB b Eh
$ $ $ $ $ $
31 December 2020 12020512 A31R
At 31 December 2019 and at R2019F12R31E8 R
1 January 2020 202051418
Cost A 6,855,332 17,052,690 5,109,410 1,304,984 23,467,084 30,322,416
Accumulated depreciation ZiNE (75,725) (3,240,013) (4,598,469)  (268,970) (8,107,452) (8,183,177
Net carrying amount FESEIE 6,779,607 13,812,677 510,941 1,036,014 15,359,632 22,139,239
At 1 January 2020, net of accumulated % 20201818 -
depreciation NGEHNE 6,779,607 13,812,677 510,941 1,036,014 15,359,632 22,139,239
Additions E — — — 173,510 173,510 173,510
Depreciation provided during the year FERENE (7,971)  (341,054)  (510,941)  (270,211) (1,122,206) (1,130,177)
At 31 December 2020, net of R2020612A318
accumulated depreciation Nk 2:E 6,771,636 13,471,623 — 939,313 14,410,936 21,182,572
At 31 December 2020: R2020F12R 318 :
Cost KR 6,855,332 17,052,690 5,109,410 1,478,494 23,640,594 30,495,926
Accumulated depreciation ZEtE (83,696) (3,581,067) (5,109,410)  (539,181) (9,229,658) (9,313,354)
Net carrying amount EASESE 6,771,636 13,471,623 — 939,313 14,410,936 21,182,572
31 December 2019 2019%12R31H
At 1 January 2019 201951418
Cost A 6,855,332 17,052,690 5,109,410 463,580 22,625,680 29,481,012
Accumulated depreciation ZiME (67,754) (2,898,959) (4,087,528) (62,644) (7,049,131) (7,116,885)
Net carrying amount FESEFE 6,787,578 14,153,731 1,021,882 400,936 15,576,549 22,364,127
At 1 January 2019, net of R2019F1R18
accumulated depreciation Tk 2iE 6,787,578 14,153,731 1,021,882 400,936 15,576,549 22,364,127
Additions NE — — — 841,404 841,404 841,404
Depreciation provided during the year — FERFNE (7971)  (341,054)  (510,941)  (206,326) (1,058,321) (1,066,292)
At 31 December 2019, net of R2019F12R318
accumulated depreciation MR EsHTE 6,779,607 13,812,677 510,941 1,036,014 15,359,632 22,139,239
At 31 December 2019: R2019%12A318:
Cost A 6,855,332 17,052,690 5,109,410 1,304,984 23,467,084 30,322,416
Accumulated depreciation ZiE (75,725) (3,240,013) (4,598,469)  (268,970) (8,107,452) (8,183,177
Net carrying amount FESEIE 6,779,607 13,812,677 510,941 1,036,014 15,359,632 22,139,239




NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
7} 55 ¥ 2% Biil 5

10. INTANGIBLE ASSETS

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

10. B L EE

(LAETTIIR)

Computer
software
EE M
$
31 December 2020 2020412 HA31H
At 31 December 2019 and at 1 January 2020: 2019512 A31 HKER2020F1 818 :
Cost R 1,040,766
Accumulated amortisation RETEEE (227,836)
Net carrying amount ARE S FEFE 812,930
At 1 January 2020, net of accumulated 20201 A 18 - Bk Rt
amortisation 812,930
Additions NE 78,400
Amortisation provided during the year F S B (214,033)
At 31 December 2020, net of accumulated #2020 12 A31 H © kR 21
amortisation 677,297
At 31 December 2020: R2020F 12 A31H :
Cost BN 1,119,166
Accumulated amortisation 2T (441,869)
Net carrying amount RS FE 677,297
31 December 2019 20194 12A31H
At 1 January 2019: M2019F1H1H :
Cost AR 757,577
Accumulated amortisation RETE Y (50,505)
Net carrying amount RESREEE 707,072
At 1 January 2019, net of accumulated 7201941 818 - f0Bk 25T#kH
amortisation 707,072
Additions RE 283,189
Amortisation provided during the year FEREBEN (177,331)
At 31 December 2019, net of accumulated R20199 12 A31 H © Bk 25+
amortisation 812,930
At 31 December 2019: MR2019F 12 A31 8 :
Cost R 1,040,766
Accumulated amortisation RETEEE (227,836)
Net carrying amount ARE S FEFE 812,930
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11. DEBT INVESTMENTS AT AMORTISED COST 11. RE#ERAFEZBEERE
2020 2019
$ $
Debt investments at amortised cost, A EZ
at nominal value EBRE ZHE
— Unlisted bond — FLMES 15,000,000 15,000,000
— Certificates of deposits — B — 770,000,000
15,000,000 785,000,000
Unamortised discounts REESH 2 3740 (3,591) (21,351)
At amortised cost bive K= DWIN 14,996,409 784,978,649
Analysed into: Y-
Non-current assets IERENVEE — 14,978,649
Current assets REAE 14,996,409 770,000,000
14,996,409 784,978,649
As at 31 December 2020 and 2019, the Board'’s unlisted K2020%F %2019 12A31H ' &% 8
bond investment was with a fixed interest rate of 4.85% per G LLMEFREBEFNERL4.85%
annum and would mature in March 2021. Subsequent to the MEIEEH A2021F3 A - REREEIRE -
end of the reporting period, the Board redeemed the unlisted EeZE SRR ELIF LMERERE -

bond investments in full upon maturity.

As at 31 December 2019, the Board’s certificates of deposits MR2019F 12 A31H  E2Z B 2FXK
were with fixed interest rates ranging from 1.78% to 2.17% BEEFHENT1.78%ZE2.17% * EI
per annum and matured between March 2020 to March BN 202063 A2 2020611 7 ©

2021 to November 2020.

As at 31 December 2019, the fair value of certificates M20194 12 A31 H - RIS EE
of deposits based on quoted market bid price was AECEREZAREMERT81,953,130
HK$781,953,130. BT o
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (AEITHIR)

12. EQUITY INVESTMENTS DESIGNATED 12. i§ERARAABEN ARME
AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH OTHER HW @2 RAEIRE
COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

2020 2019
$ $
Listed equity investments, at fair value: _EHRAIRE AL BE :

Hong Kong &b 139,274,575 194,583,881
The above equity investments were irrevocably designated at P RARE BT AIMEMIEE AR AR E
fair value through other comprehensive income as the Board Bt AHEMEENE  REASESZEGR
considers these investments to be strategic in nature. REEREZ B RRRRNE -

Details of the Board’s equity investments designated at fair ESZESHETEARANEEFAHMS
value through other comprehensive income are as follows: HW a2 BRAFE S 2 ZREFBOT ¢

Dividend Dividend

income for income for

Fair value the year Fair value the year

as at ended as at ended

Stock 31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December

Name of company code 2020 2020 2019 2019

R20206  BZE2020% R2019%  BE2019%

12A3182 12A31B%E 1283182 12A31R%E

DREH g DfEE ZBREHA DRfEE 3L ON
$ $ $ $

CK Hutchison Holdings Ltd. RIMZEEEER AR 1 22,937,751 1,235,501 31,502,309 1,344,042

CLP Holdings Ltd. BHERARAR 2 17,838,960 766,304 20,376,720 766,304
Hong Kong and China BERERTERAF

Gas Co. Ltd. 3 11,274,832 896,681 14,113,247 1,755,086
HSBC Holdings plc ELZRARAF 5 22,445,100 — 33516180 2,200,060
Power Assets Holdings Ltd. EaeE£ERAF) 6 7,581,000 505,400 10,288,500 505,400
Hang Seng Bank Ltd. BERITERDA 11 17,822,210 893,110 21,461,300 1,039,740
Sun Hung Kai Properties Ltd. $r R ERE AR AR 16 22,500,000 1,113,750 26,842,500 1,113,750
Swire Pacific Ltd. AEBRHBRDA 19 - 410,075 12,633,800 549,675

CK Asset Holdings Ltd. RIBXEEFRAA] 1113 16,874,722 814,057 23,849,325 826,777

139,274,575 6,634,878 194,583,881 10,100,834
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13.

14.

(LAETTIIR)

During the year, the Board sold its equity investment in Swire
Pacific Ltd. as this investment no longer aligned with the
Board’s investment strategy. The aggregated fair value on the
date of sale was HK$7,776,075 and the accumulated loss
recognised in other comprehensive income of HK$253,850
was transferred to accumulated fund.

AEE  RE2ZBEEHEERNAGENE
RABIZBHE  RESZERETENAE
SRBGZRARE - HEEAZEAARE
ERET,776,0757L  MEEREMEE
WeiiER A RIEER B 253,850 TEH

FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE 13. BAABEFTAEBZZEME
THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS =
2020 2019
$ $
Listed fund investments, at fair value: ETESKE  BARERE:

Hong Kong 5 311,990,100 224,228,675
The above investments were classified as financial assets TR EE S EARARBESABREZE
at fair value through profit or loss as the Board has not MEE  FRRARESZESWMEEEN M
elected to recognise the fair value gain or loss through other 2HWEER AL BEREIEE -
comprehensive income.

ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE 14. FEUWERFX
2020 2019
$ $
Accounts receivable FEUBE 7 18,058,170 28,325,812
Impairment A (1,879,735) (1,958,114)
16,178,435 26,367,698

The credit period is 30 days. The Board seeks to maintain
strict control over its outstanding receivables and has
developed credit control policy to minimise credit risk.
Overdue balances are reviewed regularly by senior
management. The Board does not hold any collateral or
other credit enhancements over these balances. Accounts
receivable are non-interest-bearing.

EEHRI0ORKR - E2Z EGBNBRRES
HAREBRESR - YEHEEEZEHIBERINA
HEERREERE - SREEESTHE
Blaiisses - RS2 R B eWERZSERET
BEERIR RS E IR E S o UK
THEETE -
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The movements in the loss allowance for impairment of
accounts receivable are as follows:

7} 55 ¥ 2% Biil 5

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (AEITHIR)

BRRYGRRE 2 BIRBEERMNT

2020 2019

$ $

At 1 January W1A1AH 1,958,114 1,598,882
Impairment losses, net (note 6) BRI EEE (M13E6) (78,379) 359,232
At 31 December M12A31H 1,879,735 1,958,114

The Board measures loss allowances for accounts receivable
at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs, which is calculated
using a provision matrix. The Board measures loss allowance
on financial assets based on the past loss experience, existing
market conditions as well as forward looking information at
the end of each reporting period. The Board has substantially
provided for uncollected levy due from contractors in
financial difficulties. For other uncollected levy income, the
Board considered that there is no significant loss allowance
recognised in accordance with HKFRS 9 as at 31 December
2020 and 2019.

Set out below is the information about the credit risk
exposure on the Board's accounts receivable using a provision

matrix:

As at 31 December 2020

HEeZEeRASNREFENANEREER
ER(RAREREE) 22BTERK
FIAZEERE  E2ZBENZHEHR
RIFBERERLR - BTN KB
ERtESREE BHERE ES2Z8E
BRI M S B 75 TR 8 2 B 7 2 SR MBIk
TR ARERHE - BLEMARUKE 2 BEEA T
T 20204 K20194 12 H31H &
L EERBEFEMBREERE IRLE
MEREARRRE -

TXEIFBEEEESHESZB SR
WERF AR 2 EERBRER

2020612 A31H

Past due
B
Less than 3 months Over
Current 3 months to 1 year 1 year Total
B SR3MEA 3ERELF 150 et
Expected credit loss rate TEHREEEEEX — 0.5% 93.1% 95.0% 10.4%
Gross carrying amount (HK$)  4aBEmE & (B7T) 15,669,177 411,700 31,325 1,945,968 18,058,170

Expected credit losses (HK$) FBER{=ZE k518 (5 T) —

1,900

29,165 1,848,670 1,879,735
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15.

16.

(LAETTIIR)

As at 31 December 2019

2019412 A31H

Past due
B
Less than 3 months Over

Current 3 months to 1 year 1 year Total

B SR3EA 3EAELF 150 T

Expected credit loss rate BHEEEIER — 15.3% 95.0% 95.0% 6.9%
Gross carrying amount (HK$)  42BEmEE (B7T) 25,723,537 645,269 290,236 1,666,770 28,325,812
Expected credit losses (HK$) FEHBZE 18 (B7T) — 98,959 275,724 1,583,431 1,958,114

At the end of the reporting period, the Board had certain
concentrations of credit risk as 18% (2019: 5%) and 46%
(2019: 23%) of the Board’s accounts receivable were due
from the Board’s largest debtor and the five largest debtors,
respectively.

TIME DEPOSITS WITH ORIGINAL
MATURITY OF MORE THAN THREE
MONTHS

As at 31 December 2020, the effective interest rate on time
deposits with original maturity of more than three months
was 1.2% (2019: 2.55%) per annum. These deposits have
an average maturity of 222 days (2019: 211 days).

15.

REEPR R ZEeEETEEETA
ke FARESZESZBINGKIEZ 18%
(20194 : 5%) K 46% (20194 : 23%)
PRBRERESZEGrEABEBARA
REHA o

REBB=EA Rz EH
EZN

MW2020F12F318  REBB=1A
BIHEBHERCERFNEA1.2%
(20194 : 2.55%) : ZETFHFHHRA
222 B (20194 : 211H) °

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 16. R RREZEY
2020 2019
$ $
Cash and bank balances He NMRITES 43,482,975 21,513,295
Time deposits aire 2,383,273,5680  1,558,421,907

Less: Time deposits with original maturity g :

FREB=1EH %

2,426,756,555 1,579,935,202

of more than three months B EHATE K
(note 15) (FF5E15) (2,383,273,580) (1,558,421,907)
Cash and cash equivalents e RIESZEEY 43,482,975 21,513,295




17.

18.
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (AEITHIR)

ACCRUALS AND OTHER PAYABLES 17. Bt RCER H B RRIE
2020 2019
$ $
Accruals FEET A 3,351,498 4,926,381
Other payables H b eI 31,151 9,923
Provision for unutilised annual leave REFAFREAE 752,976 580,000
Provision for litigation claim SRR 7 B 3,829,481 3,829,481
7,965,106 9,345,785

Provision for litigation claim was made for a court case which
was still in progress at the end of the reporting period. The
provision of HK$3,829,481 (2019: HK$3,829,481) refers
to the damage amount claimed by a patient in respect of his
disability resulting from pneumoconiosis.

E RN R E PRI IR T AR AT
WREREFL R - #183,829,481 T
(20194 : 3,829,481 L) 2 RAEBHE A
AR ERMERBRAIRLZRES
e

PROVISION FOR LONG SERVICE PAYMENTS 18. REIfRIE € &1E
2020 2019
$ $
At 1 January W1A1H 120,000 111,000
Provision/(reversal) during the year AAREERE (F@) (12,789) 9,000
At 31 December R12A31H 107,211 120,000

The provision for long service payment is based on the best
estimate of the probable future payments which have been
earned by the Board’s employees from their service to the
Board to the end of the reporting period less any amount that
would be expected to be met by the vested benefits in the
retirement benefit scheme at the end of the reporting period.

EHRBSBEDRERESBREREHREA
HAEeZ 8 SR HIRS M BREUR 7] &1 28
ZREB IR RS RN R IR FF &
BRSRAN A 2 E 8 2 & EfE

S




19. FUNDS AND RESERVES

19. EE Kk f#%

(ssejjop 8uoy] BuoH ul passaidx3)

(ML1£2LBLY)

P 22 B 560 [

1]
—
-

1

Accumulated Research Prevention Rehabilitation Computer Capital Investment
fund fund fund fund systems fund reserve reserve Total
ZiEHe FrES ERES fEEES EfZGES ERGE RERME Eh
(note (a)) (note (b)) (note (c)) (note (d)) (note (¢) (note (f))
(B3 (a)) (F3E (b)) (B3 (c)) (B () (I3t (e)) (Bsk ()
$ $ $ $ $ $ $ $
At 1 January 2019 R2019%1581R 2,584,069,802 12,897,987 27,309,079 13,122,931 707,072 22,364,127 56,295,392 2,716,766,390
Surplus for the year EERE 134,434,937 — - - - — - 134,434,937
Transfer from accumulated fund Eka2EES (49,795,440) 2,516,517 24,983 354 21,170,976 283,189 841404 — -
Transfer to accumulated fund to compensate;  BAZEERIER
Depreciation (note 9) HE(W9) 1,066,292 — - - - (1,066,292) - -
Amortisation of intangible assets EfaEEH (10
(note 10) 177,331 — - - (177,331) — - -
Project expense Y 48,670,847 (2,516517)  (24,983354)  (21,170,976) - - - -
Reclassification adjustment for HEREESNEEY
amounts transferred from funds EEipE 11,656,417 (516,517) (4,968 924) (6,170,976) - — — -
Fair value loss on equity investments B BESALZERGL
designated at fair value through EERTREZ DA EESA
other comprehensive income - - — — — — (7,223,992) (7,223992)
At 31 December 2019 R2019%12A31A 2,730,280,186 12,381,470 22,340,155 6,951,955 812,930 22,139,239 49,071,400  2,843,977,335
At 31 December 2019 R2019% 128318k
and at 1 January 2020 #202051R1H 2,730,280,186 12,381,470 22,340,155 6,951,955 812,930 22,139,239 49,071,400  2,843,977,335
Surplus for the year FERY 144,145,468 - - - - - — 144145468
Transfer from accumulated fund ERRZRES (39,922,524) 2,622,137 20,919,318 16,129,159 78,400 173,510 - -
Transfer to accumulated fund to compensate;  BAZBESIER
Depreciation (note 9) HE(H9) 1,130,177 — - - - (1,130,177) - -
Amortisation of intangible assets EYEERH
(note 10) (s 10) 214,033 — — - (214,033) — - —
Project expense Y 39,670,614 (2,622,137)  (20919318)  (16,129,159) - - - -
Reclassification adjustment for SEREESNEEY
amounts transferred from funds EEipp 7,237,613 (622,136) (919,318) (5,696,159) — — — —
Fair value loss on equity investments EAABESAL2EREL
designated at fair value through RERAREZ A EERE
other comprehensive income — - — — — — (48,099,798)  (48,099,798)
Transfer of fair value reserve upon the REERDABE AMLE
disposal of equity investments designated ~ WEZ iR RAEAEL
at fair value through other comprehensive A4 EfE R (K51 12)
income (note 12) (253,850) — — — — — 253,850 —
At 31 December 2020 R2020612 318 2,882,501,717 11,759,334 21,420,837 1,255,79% 677,297 21,182,672 1,225,452 2,940,023,005

SINIW31V1S TVIONVNI4 01 S310N
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Notes:

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

(f)

Research fund
A research fund has been set aside to finance ongoing
research projects.

Prevention fund

A prevention fund has been set aside to finance
education and publicity programs aiming at reminding
workers and their families on the occupational hazard,
and stressing the importance of prevention.

Rehabilitation fund

A rehabilitation fund has been set aside to finance
rehabilitation programs which provide holistic
rehabilitation care to patients.

Computer systems fund
A computer systems fund has been set aside to finance
development for various systems.

Capital reserve

A capital reserve has been set aside to finance the
acquisition of property, plant and equipment and
depreciation charged is compensated by a transfer from
this reserve each year.

Investment reserve

Investment reserve represents the accumulated net
change in the fair value of financial assets at fair value
through other comprehensive income.

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

’H
=
R

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

Q)

7} 55 ¥ 2% Biil 5

(LAETTIIR)

MEES
MEE S AIAEBHETTH 2 ERHTIE
A -

HEBEE

B ESEBERAE REFEBME
HOES  BEERETIRRERAR
ZAMRER - YRFRDEE A E
M2 BB -

HRES
ERESRUEDERERLS B
WARME NERFIREE -

EREAGESAREDHRZTER

BXRE
BEXHECBIERBEMR - #ER
RBRMHES  WEBFEZIARER
RAEEFER -

RERE
RERBEREAABEFARMEE
Wz eBMEELRERABEZSD
FER o
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20.NOTES TO THE STATEMENT OF CASH 20. R&RERK=

FLOWS
(a) Reconciliation of surplus for the year to (a) FERREBEEITDESE
cash generated from operations WE 2SR
Notes 2020 2019
k=S $ $
Surplus for the year FEAH 144,145,468 134,434,937
Adjustments for: AT EEFE
Depreciation e 9 1,130,177 1,066,292
Amortisation of intangible assets B 10 214,033 177,331
Amortisation of discounts of debt RSN AR E 2
investments at amortised costs AR ZANIEE 2 3 H0
s (17,760) (17,711)
Impairment/(reversal of impairment)  fEWEETCRE,
of accounts receivable CRuE#[E) 14 (78,379) 359,232
Interest income el A (47,363,003) (55,973,340)
Dividend income &% S U A (14,859,303) (16,980,629)
Fair value gain on equity RARBET AR
investments at fair value through ZEARIEE 2
profit or loss, net Ao EENERFE (1,466,325) (15,568,100)
81,704,908 47,498,012
Decrease/(increase) in accounts FEUM AR TR (3 hn)
receivable 10,267,642 (6,670,327)
Decrease/(increase) in prepayments  Jaf 208 Rigd
and deposits B () 145,064 (162,344)
Decrease in advance payment B MESRD
for compensation 297,190 133,530
Decrease in accruals and other JESTFUE K H A R
payables HIERA (1,380,679) (376,316)
Increase/(decrease) in provision for REPRIG S B
long service payments #n/ CRd) (12,789) 9,000
Cash generated from operations e EESHELES 91,021,336 40,431,555
(b) Major non-cash transaction (b) BERIRERS
During the year, the Board received script dividend REAFEE E2ZE5gRRNUK
of HK$566,567 (2019: HK$1,449,926) from listed BB 566,567 7L (20194 : B

equity investments. 1,449,926 7T) °
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

At the end of the reporting period, the Board was contingently
liable for compensations payable on 18 (2019: 44) re-
assessment applications under the Pneumoconiosis and
Mesothelioma (Compensation) Ordinance which have not yet
been approved by the Pneumoconiosis Medical Board. In the
opinion of the Board members, the financial effect of the re-
assessment applications cannot be reliably measured.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY

The financial assets of the Board comprise (i) financial assets
at fair value through profit or loss which are categorised
as financial assets at fair value through profit or loss -
mandatorily designated as such; (ii) equity investments
designated at fair value through other comprehensive income
which are categorised as financial assets at fair value through
other comprehensive income; and (iii) accounts receivable,
interest receivables, deposits, debt investments at amortised
cost, time deposits with original maturity of more than three
months and cash and cash equivalents, which are categorised
as financial assets at amortised cost. The carrying amount
of other deposit is HK$65,873 (2019: HK$68,533). The
carrying amounts of other financial assets are shown on the
statement of financial position.

The financial liability of the Board comprise financial
liabilities included in accruals and other payables categorised
as financial liabilities at amortised cost. The carrying amount
of financial liabilities included in accruals and other payables
is HK$3,382,649 (2019: HK$4,936,304).

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

21.

22.
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HAREE

RHEHRR RS EZBEXNAHRISH
(20194 : 4417 ) IR R Hb BB IR T & i M FH
2P (F1E) IEBIVR R I FF I EE IR T & R H)
BLZESREZBHEBEINHE BT
ZERA  BHRBZUETEREL]

U

0

i
2 mﬂ>
Hﬂlm

BRERESZ2ERMITA

EeZBeVSRMEERE(NETARA
AEEFABZZEMEEDDEARA
AREEFABREZEEMEE — RHIE
E o (NIETEARAABEFAEMBLEAEI
BZRAZECHBEARAABET AL
FEWEZEMEE K (i) BUREER - &
W~ T30 IREBER AT E 2 EBE
E REBBEZEABIBzEBERL

BekBeEEMHE DB ARBHKAR
EZERMEE - B 2FASBABE
65,873 T(20194F : ## 68,533 L) ° H
thEMEEZ RMEDSHRMERRE

HeZBGMBRABERREC AR A
REMBENFBEZMBERE  COBERRE
WA E 2B AE - O AR IR

DEMEMZFBEZHEAGEZERAEAS
# 3,382,649 7T (20194 :
JT) e

7516 4,936,304
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (AE7TdIR)

23. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY

OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

At the end of the reporting period, the carrying amounts
of the Board’s financial assets and financial liability
approximated to their fair values.

The fair values of the financial assets and liability are
included at the amount at which the instrument could be
exchanged in a current transaction between willing parties,
other than in a forced or liquidation sale.

Management has assessed that the fair values of accounts
receivable, interest receivables, deposits, the current portion
of unlisted bond included in debt investments at amortised
cost, time deposits with original maturity of more than three
months and cash and cash equivalents approximate to their
carrying amounts largely due to the short term maturities of
these instruments.

The fair value of the non-current portion of unlisted bond
included in debt investments at amortised cost has been
calculated by discounting the expected future cash flows
using rates currently available for instrument with similar
terms, credit risk and remaining maturities.

The fair value of certificates of deposits included in debt
investments at amortised cost as at 31 December 2019
was based on quoted market bid price. Further details are
disclosed in note 11 to the financial statements.

The fair values of listed equity and fund investments are
based on quoted market prices.

23. ERMTREARBERAAEE
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Fair value hierarchy

7} 55 ¥ 2% Biil 5

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LABTTYIR)

The following tables illustrate the fair value measurement

hierarchy of the Board’s financial instruments:

Assets measured at fair value
As at 31 December 2020

NAREERER

TRELESZES SR T ARAABER
EEM:

BARBEAECZEE
A 2020412 A31H

Fair value measurement using
ERAUTHABEZAAREETE

Quoted prices

Significant  Significant

in active  observable unobservable
markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
EATEE EBEATUTER
SERMISRE BWAE WAE
(B2 (EZZ5RH) (B=5H) @gt
$ $ $ $
Equity investments designated & Al AR BEA
at fair value through other Hit Atz RARE
comprehensive income:
Listed equity investments FRRARE 139,274,575 — — 139,274,575
Financial assets at fair BARBEFABRZ
value through profit or loss SREE 311,990,100 — — 311,990,100

451,264,675

— 451,264,675
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LABTTYIR)

-

As at 31 December 2019 M20194 12 A31H
Fair value measurement using
FEAUNTHABZDAERBTE
Quoted prices  Significant  Significant
in active observable unobservable
markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
EATHE EAFTTHE
SERTISRE BAE BAE
(B—28) (=) (=) et
$ $ $ $
Equity investments designated 15 Bz AR EETAEM
at fair value through other 2EWEZRARE
comprehensive income:
Listed equity investments EmkAgE 194,583,881 — — 194,583,881
Financial assets at fair RARKEBEFAEBRZZ
value through profit or loss ~ &B&E 224,228,675 — — 224,228,675
418,812,556 — — 418,812,556
During the year, there were no transfers of fair value FN - HEMEENS  E—REF -2
measurements between Level 1 and Level 2 and no transfers HWEAEEGTEEE - MEEARED
into or out of Level 3 for financial assets (2019: Nil). FZH(2019F « ) o
Liabilities measured at fair value BArBEAEZEE
The Board did not have any financial liability measured at E$Z£8gmM2020F12A31H k2019
fair value as at 31 December 2020 and 31 December 2019. F12A3lI AUEEMEARBEAEZEZS

BAE-




NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

24.FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

The main risks arising from the Board’s financial instruments
are credit risk, liquidity risk, equity and fund price risk and
interest rate risk. The Board reviews and agrees policies for
managing each of these risks and are summarised below.

Credit risk

Credit risk of the Board is primarily attributable to accounts
receivable, debt investments at amortised cost, time deposits
with original maturity of more than three months and cash
and bank balances.

The Board has policies in place for the control and
monitoring of its credit risk arising from uncollected levy
income. The credit risk on debt investments at amortised
cost, time deposits with original maturity of more than three
months and cash and bank balances is limited because the
counterparties are corporations and banks with high credit
rating assigned by international credit-rating agencies.
Accordingly, the Board members are of the opinion that the
Board’s activities are not exposed to significant credit risk.

Further quantitative data in respect of the Board’'s exposure
to credit risk arising from accounts receivable are disclosed
in note 14 to the financial statements.

With respect to credit risk arising from the other financial
assets of the Board, which comprise interest receivables,
deposits, debt investments at amortised cost, time deposits
with original maturity of more than three months and cash
and cash equivalents, arises from default of the counterparty,
the Board’s exposure to credit risk arises from default of the
counterparty, with a maximum exposure equal to the carrying
amounts of these instruments. These financial assets of
the Board are classified within stage 1 for measurements of
ECLs.

7} 55 ¥ 2% Biil 5

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (AEITHIR)
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (AE7TdIR)

Liquidity risk

Prudent liquidity risk management implies maintaining
sufficient cash and bank balances. The Board, through its
Committee on Finance and Administration, has adopted a
prudent investment and treasury strategy so as to ensure
that it maintains sufficient cash to meet its liquidity
requirements.

The maturity profile of the Board’s financial liability as at
the end of the reporting period, based on the contractual
undiscounted payments, was less than one year or repayable
on demand.

Equity and fund price risk

Equity and fund price risk is the risk that the fair values of
equity and fund investments decrease as a result of changes
in the levels of equity indices and the value of underlying
individual securities. The Board is exposed to equity and
fund price risk arising from its equity investments designated
at fair value through other comprehensive income (note 12)
and financial investments at fair value through profit or loss
(note 13) as at 31 December 2020. The Board’s listed equity
and fund investments are listed on the Hong Kong stock
exchange and are valued at closing prices at the end of the
reporting period.

The market equity index for the Hong Kong stock exchange,
at the close of nearest business trading day of the end of the
reporting period, and its respective highest and lowest points
during the year were as follows:

HEZRBECRRERERFERUES
KiRTTHE SR - RS R EREBREB T 2MHK
RITBZEEERIBEEZRERBHR
B AERBRHRSEBNERDHEST

Koo

RESVIFMENFTEILZESREES
MEERREARZBPRRA /IR —F L

REREE -

B B E S EIRER

BARESEERRABRERARESEREZ A
S EEERAEEKT KB ERFAEE
LIREBEM B R - ESZEEY A
2020F 12 A31 BEETZR AR BERA
Empmiam s BAKRE ([E12) RIETE
BAREBEFABRZSRBIEE (H:E13)
FTELZBRARESERAR -HZEEEE
2 ETRARECRERE BB L
WIZRHRE IR 2 W BEE -

FERERR 2 RO S B RSB
2GR RERFRES A 2 &e MR
KBTS -

31 December  High/low 31 December  High/low

2020 2020 2019 2019
2020 2020 % 2019 F 2019 F

12831H =/1& 128318 =/ 18

Hong Kong — B — BAEY 27,231 29,175/ 28,190 30,280/

Hang Seng Index 21,139 24,897




NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to changes
in the fair values of the equity and fund investments
assuming a 5% change in fair values of the underlying
instruments with all other variables held constant and before
any impact on tax, based on their carrying amounts at the
end of the reporting period. For the purpose of this analysis,
for the financial investments at fair value through other
comprehensive income, the impact is deemed to be on the

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

7} 55 ¥ 2% Biil 5

(LAETTIIR)

TRETBREMTARAABERL% 2E
8 - EEMMAEREHRTE BRGTAER
BMBHEZBAT BARESREZAR
BEZHHRE - WARBRENREH
RZREEFE - RADMWBENME - &
BMERAREBEFAEMCEZAKRE 2 2RI
B WEARRETERNTERE

fair value reserve.

Change in
Carrying Change in funds and
amount of surplus for reserve®
investments the year HEER
RERHEE FREGKZEE [FEz2H*
$ $ $
2020 2020 F
Investments listed in REBZ ETHRE -
Hong Kong:
Equity investments BERARBERA
designated at fair value Hib2mzmr
through other A E
comprehensive income 139,274,575 — 6,963,729
Financial investments at BARBETAERZ
fair value through SRR E
profit or loss 311,990,100 15,599,505 —
2019 2019 F
Investments listed in REEZ LTHRE :
Hong Kong:
Equity investments EERARBEA
designated at fair value Hih2mizms
through other IRAIE
comprehensive income 194,583,881 — 9,729,194
Financial investments at BAnBEFAERZ
fair value through SEIEE
profit or loss 224,228,675 11,211,434 —
*  Excluding accumulated fund * HBRRBES
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

25.

(LAETTIIR)

Interest rate risk

The Board is exposed to interest rate risk through the impact
of rate changes on interest-bearing financial assets. The
value of financial instruments will fluctuate due to changes
in market interest rates. Bank balances, including time
deposits with original maturity of more than three months,
earn interest at floating rates based on daily bank deposits
rates. Assuming the amount of bank balances, including time
deposits, outstanding at the end of the reporting period was
outstanding for the whole year, a 100 basis-point increase/
decrease in interest rates at 31 December 2020 and 2019
would have increased/decreased the Board’s surplus for the
year by HK$24,267,423 and HK$15,799,321, respectively.
There is no impact on funds and reserves except for
accumulated fund.

Capital management

The primary objective of the Board’s capital management
is to safeguard the Board’s ability to continue as a going
concern and to have sufficient funding for future operations.

No changes were made in the objectives, policies or
processes for managing capital during the years ended 31

December 2020 and 31 December 2019.

Capital of the Board comprises its funds and reserves.

APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The financial statements were approved and authorised for
issue by the Board on 21 June 2021.

25.
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Number of Confirmed New Cases in the Past Ten &I TFHEZFHBREF
Years

Total 42k *
«e+743 (43) [123]-

® 6 06 0 0 0 0 o

L]
[ ]
[ ]
L]

® © 6 0 6 0 o 0o o o o

l0 >~ T

112
I12
100 = ¢ ottt e e e e e e e e
12
85 84
s . - - R - - - - - -
13 14 72

; 2
59 16 13 16 10 I9

20

2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020

. Silicosis cases Asbestosis cases ’ Mesothelioma cases’ Asbestosis & Mesothelioma case
WihmEZR ARnERER I E R ARINERRERRER
Average Percentage of cases having employment record in the construction/quarry industry
FHH DR EEEXRABEZTAREESL
86 89 86 87 85 90 91 83 83 84 86

Figures in parentheses () represents number of Asbestosis cases and figures in brackets [ ]
represents number of Mesothelioma cases included in the total.
OREFRERBEHARIEREE AL M INBFRIAEREH TR BEEZ
AE -

*  One patient in 2019 was determined to be suffering from both Asbestosis and Mesothelioma

IR -NFRBERRCRREALRNERREERE
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Analysis of Pneumoconiosis and Mesothelioma Cases Newly Confirmed in 2020
“ECEFRAERHEZHERNER R EEEERS

40-49 W+ZEN+ 1B
50-59 A+EA 15
60-69 N t+ER TR

70-79 +t+Z2++hm
80 and above N\t &MA

. Employed
TR

. Unemployed/retired
KEBIRIK

Table 1: Age/Average Degree of Incapacity Analysis

Blx— Fic THEEXIERNIEES T

Age group Number of cases Average age Average DOI(%)
T A TERENTR

F i 42 751 mAANE P F iR EADR*

40-49 3 — [1] 48 32

H+Z=+ sk

50-59 12 — [1] 57 20

A+ER TR

60-69 66 (3) [5] 64 15

ANTEXRT R

70-79 21 (3) [3] 73 14

t+EETNR

80 and above 10  (6) [2] 84 11

N BRI

Total 112 (12) [12] 67 16

B

*  Total number has included 11 fatal cases, the degree of incapacity of whom has not
been determined.

¥ BHERIRRARERKRTFENEEZILTER -

Table 2: Patients’ Employment Status at Time of First
Registration

Bx— mABRETKIMEER

Employement Status Number of cases Percentage
MEER BmAANE RS
Employed 33 (1) [2] 29.5
FERR

Unemployed/retired 79 (11) [10] 70.5
KEBIRIK

Total 112 (12) [12] 100.0
By

Figures in parentheses ( ) represent number of Asbestosis cases and brackets [ ]
represent numbers of Mesothelioma cases included in the total.
ORNBEFREREEPARNERBEZAR M 1AVBFRIREREEPERBEE
PN
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Table 3: Employment History of Pneumoconiosis and Mesothelioma Cases Newly Confirmed
in 2020
Bx= —ZFT_TFAFRHATZIMERNERMERBEEBE 2 TIELHE

Length of employment

REBITERR
Industry Below 10 years 10 years or above Total
RrEITE TEUT TERUE e
Construction Only 1 (0) [0] 44 (2) 0] 45 (2) 101
RegE¥—18
Construction & Quarry 0 (0) 10] 1 (0) 101 1 (0) 101
BEERAEE
Construction & Quarry and others 2 (1) [O] 48 (6) [3] 50 (7) [3]
B AR NHEMITE
Sub-total 3 (1) [o1] 93 (8) I[31] 96 (9) I[3]
EIg/NA
Other industries
HAhiT3
Ship manufacturing/sailoring 0 (0) [0] 1 (0) [1] 1 (0) [1]
ERE 1T
Machine repairing/Metal work 0 (0) 10] 2 (2) 101 2 (2) 101
HiisE RS TR
Jade/gem stone polishing 0 (0) [0] 4 (0) 101 4 (0) 101
XA /BRI
Others 2 (0 [2] 7 (1) [6] 9 (1) I[8] |
Hith
Sub-total 2 0 I[21 14 3) [7] 16 3) 9]
EIg/NA
Total 5 (1) 121 107 (11) [10] 112 (12) [12]
FEE
Notes:

— Figures in parentheses () represent number of Asbestosis cases and brackets [ ] represent numbers of Mesothelioma cases
included in the total.

— Among the 112 cases under study, 96 (85.7%) have worked in the construction and /or the quarry industries. Only 16 (14.3%)
have had employment connection with neither.

— ORBFRERBBPOLMLERBEZAZ  MIABFRREREBETHELBEE ZAR -
— BE112E8EED - 96 A(85.7%) BREEXER, ABWETIE - RE16 A (14.3%) feERMNEMITETE
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Analysis of Payments Made Under the Pneumoconiosis and Mesothelioma

(Compensation) Ordinance as at 31 December 2020
R-ZZBZEF+ZA=1+—H(WERNERRERE (FE) RODBEZHS M

Table 1: Analysis of Latest Payments Made to the “Old case”

Pneumoconiosis Patients
Bx— [EER]I*mARTESZSABESEIT

Degree of incapacity Total Average
assessed in latest amount of compensation
assessment/ Number monthly payment per
re-assessment (%) of case(s) payment month per case
RHBHRATH BRAWELR BABAYY
REORERDR BWAAE X ESZHELSH
($) ($)

5-20 120 670,300 5,586
25-40 49 437,640 8,931
45-60 21 279,130 13,292
65-80 5 70,720 14,144
85-100 2 48,650 24,325
Total 197 1,506,440 7,647
By

® 520

. In addition, “Compensation for Care and Attention” is payable to 4 cases at $5,600 per

25-40 case per month.

® 560 BARFATENADE ARTAELY (R LA mAHE] -
*"0ld case” includes those patients who have received a lump-sum compensation before

. 65-80 the ordinance was amended in 1993.

85.100 * [BEEZE] B 1993 FEHUEAAI LR [—2iB | FEFRBAME -

Table 2: Analysis of Latest Payments Made to the “New case”

PpeumoconiosisLand Mesothelioma Patients
BX—- [#FHEXR*"RAZKTESZEAMESRES N

Degree of incapacity Total Average of
assessed in latest amount of compensation
assessment/ Number of monthly payment per
re-assessment (%) case(s) payment month per case
Total BIFEHzRAIHE BRAHE SABA¥Y
P BEIERERSR mAAE B ESzHEEHE
1' “2 36 ($) ($)
! 5-20 986 8,127,310 8,243
25-40 148 2,204,710 14,897
45-60 66 1,415,480 21,447
65-80 28 733,400 26,193
. 5-20 85-100 8 285,760 35,720
. 2540 Total 1,236 12,766,660 10,329
By
® 4560 » , .
In addition, “Compensation for Care and Attention” is payable to 12 cases at $5,600 per
. 65-80 case per month.

85-100 BL2RRARFEINERE A AT AT [EERBERTEOME]
B #  “New case” includes those patients who have not received any lump-sum compensation before.

bOTETEZR) BUERERR [ — 2B ] fERNEAREERE
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Table 3: Summary of Compensation Paid Out Under the Pneumoconiosis and Mesothelioma

(Compensation) Ordinance

BR= <(FERNER&ERE(FHE)GID)< LB
Compensation item Expenses Expenses Total Expenses
incurred from incurred from incurred from
1 Jan to 1 Jan to 9 Jul 1993 to
31 Dec 2020 31 Dec 2019 31 Dec 2020
wEER —EIEH —E-NEF —hAh=F
—HA—RZ —A—BZ% tAhBZE
+=B=+-B +=A=t+-8 —g-%x
23X 22Xt  +=ZA=+—H
X B
($) ($) ($)
Compensation for death resulting from
Pneumoconiosis and Mesothelioma (or both) 20,941,797 26,579,580 524,674,161
fib BRI & s S R S TR (SRR )
SIBOL TR E
Compensation for bereavement 1,223,485 636,458 17,034,766
PEETZENRE
Monthly compensation for incapacity, pain,
suffering and loss of amenities 172,764,492 172,503,860 3,5673,723,814
EARTVERE N - KA - B MR R LB E AwME
Compensation for incapacity prior to date of diagnosis 4,120,750 2,927,157 54,453,877
FI18 B EART R 2R TYERE NV (E
Compensation for care and attention 1,050,148 672,750 18,436,529
IR N BB T A E
Funeral expenses 5,083,566 5,787,058 73,771,884
RnE
Medical expenses 2,566,017 2,519,786 40,577,017
BRE
Expenses for medical appliances 1,350,020 1,370,753 26,209,963
EEREER
Total 209,100,275 212,997,402 4,328,882,011

B
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® 6069 ~tEx+thE
® 7079 ++E++hE
. 80 and above N+

ﬁ3

Total
1,236

30-39 =t+E=1+Nm®
40-49 W+ZEMN+ B
50-59 A+EA T

60-69 Rt+ZERTBR
70-79 t+Et+hB

Profile of All Cases Receivin
R-CEBE-EF+-A=1+—HHBEEEREERAZHGTER

+

80 and above )\wﬁmu"

Compensation as at 31 December 2020

Table 1: Profile of the ‘Old Case’ Pneumoconiosis Patients

Bx— [EER]IBAZGTER
Average degree of
Age group Number of cases Average age incapacity (%)
FI9E- A TERED
F A8 5l BmAAH 159 F iR BEADE
60-69 22 67 36
ANTEXRTR
70-79 101 75 24
t+EETNRK
80 and above 74 85 19
NABERIA E
Total 197 78 24
e

Table 2: Profile of the ‘New Case’ Pneumoconiosis and
Mesothelioma Patients

Bx— [FER]RAZSAER
Average degree of
Age group Number of cases Average age incapacity (%)
FHE A TERED
FHrA8 5 AN B PG F iR BEADR
30-39 2 [2] 35 55
=t+E=+h5
40-49 3 [2] 47 40
N+Zm+ 15k
50-59 38 [3] 56 19
A+ER+NEK
60-69 587 [5] 65 16
NTERTE
70-79 418 [4] 74 16
t+EETNR
80 and above 188 [2] 85 19
N R
Total 1236 [18] 71 17
FEE

Note:

Figures in brackets [ 1 represent numbers of Mesothelioma cases included in the total.
T

[ ABFRERBEPERBIEZ AL -




Five-Year Financial Summary

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

APPENDIXV
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T FEHHEHE
2020 2019 2018 2017 2016
“ECEF ZE-NE ZE-NFE E—tF ZZB—RE
($'000)
Income WA
Levies # 358,404 336,279 367,552 370,350 346,934
Interest =N 47,363 55,974 42,349 34,311 30,065
Others HA A 15,149* 17,377 52,366 16,999 14,518
Fair value gain on financial NARBEAERS
assets (Tracker Fund) REEZARE
e
(BEED) 1,466 15,568 — — _
Total income sl A 422,382 425,198 462,267 421,660 391,517
Expenditure X
Compensation wE 209,100 212,997 213,464 204,407 192,212
Project expenses BT 39,671 48,671 43,955 41,327 24,082
Staff, administrative and other BB THERK
expenses HinfA% 27,423 27,218 30,194 24,331 21,122
Depreciation/Amortisation E i 1,344 1,244 973 1,014 1,014
Capital expenditure BRRAX 698 633 715 959 769
Exchange loss/Fair value loss on X &R,/ LARAR
financial assets EEARERE
(Tracker Fund) EZDREE
EE(BEES) — — 19,526 — 653
Total expenditure Pl 278,236 290,763 308,827 272,038 239,852
Surplus for the year REERE 144,146 134,435 153,440 149,622 151,665
Transfer from capital reserve A REERL 1,344 1,243 7,581 1,014 1,014
Transfer from investment reserve  flIEEEERE T — — 39,585 — —
Accumulated fund brought FFERE
forward 2,730,280 2,584,070 2,373,536 2,218,517 2,078,539
2,875,770 2,719,748 2,574,142 2,369,153 2,231,218
Transfer to project funds/ BANERES
computer systems BRRGES/
fund/capital reserve/ BARE/
investment reserve RERE (40,176) (49,795) (45,176) (40,779) (37,817)
Transfer from project funds to HEBESE LI
compensate project B
expenses 46,908 60,327 55,104 45,162 25,116
Accumulated fund carried ETFECRE
forward He 2,882,502 2,730,280 2,584,070 2,373,536 2,218,517
* Others include dividend income from listed securities amounting to $14,859,303, Ex-gratia Fund administration charge

received of $138,933, penalty of $148,842 on late payments of levies and sundry income of $1,433.

* HAMWABIERE LTSRS 14,859,303 7T - RERESMUERZ TR E A 138,933 7T - FIEMBGATIEZ £15K 148,842 7L K

HIEWA1,4337T ©
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